REASON, CULTURE AND HISTORY

Volume 100

By A. J. Reffes

Progress Publishers

THE KLAN RIDES AGAIN AND OTHER ESSAYS

By A. J. Reffes

Progress Publishers

TABLE OF CONTENTS

THE KLAN RIDES AGAIN
THREE CHEERS FOR THREE AMERICANS
ANTIFA TAKES OVER THE WEST
THE HEAVY TRUNCHEONS OF THE THOUGHT POLICE
THE SOUL SNATCHERS
JAWS

THE RED DONOR CLASS
THE IMPLOSION PHENOMENON
AMERICA'S REDS JOIN FORCES
ATTORNEY GENERAL PALMER
DAVID AND GOLIATH
RED CELLS SPREAD ACROSS THE NATION
THE JOURNEY OF CHARLES LINDBERGH
CITIZEN HEARST
A MESSAGE TO GARCIA
THE ENEMIES OF GLOBAL CAPITALISM
THE SHAME OF THE CITIES
THE YELLOW PERIL
TWO TRIALS IN ANTIQUITY
ANCIENT POISONS FROM THE EAST

THE KLAN RIDES AGAIN

The time is 1865, soon after the Civil War. A Klansman dressed in white robes and a white hood holds aloft a burning cross. He is the member of a new organization. He will commence a night ride of terror spreading a gospel of white supremacy. These night rides will continue unceasingly over the decades; only the hate actors and the hate targets will change; and in the twenty first century, lightning will strike and bring back the Ku Klux Klan in spirit and soul, in full force with a complete organizational and administrative structure, and promoting an explicit agenda of racial extermination. The lightning bolts of red politics have resurrected the Ku Klux Klan in the form of a black racist organization called Black Lives Matter and its agenda is the overthrow of the United States government and the establishment of a national socialist black swastika regime in its place. Black Lives Matter was founded in 2013 by Alicia Garza, Patrisse Cullors and Opal Tometi in response to the aquittal of George Zimmerman in the killing of Trayvon Martin. Zimmerman worked as a watch leader for a gated community in Florida. In 2012, he encountered a black youth in his neighborhood, Martin, who did not live there and had no business being there. Zimmerman ordered him to leave, Martin attacked him, inflicted bloody injuries on him including a broken nose, and tried to take his gun. In the ensuing struggle, Zimmerman killed Martin in self defense. Zimmerman was charged with murder but was aquitted by a jury. Garcia, Patrisse and Tometi created Black Lives Matter to protest the verdict and call black racists to action to storm the ramparts of liberal jurisprudence and establish a race based legal and political order. The spiritual founder of Black Lives Matter was Joanne Chesimard. She was the founder of the Black Liberation Army terror organization, was convicted of the first degree murder of a New Jersey state trooper in 1973, escaped from jail in 1979, and was granted asylum in Cuba in 1984, where she has lived ever since. Black Lives Matter is funded by the American cultural establishment and has received hundreds of millions of dollars from the Ford Foundation, the Borealis Philanthropy, and the Democracy Alliance, a red donors' collaborative whose members include George Soros, Tom Steyer, Robert McKay, Rob Reiner, Norman Lear and Rachel Pritzker Hunter. Listen to the thunderous paces of today's Klansmen as they gallop across plains of race hatred and charge the citadels of human decency and equal protection for all. Listen to the fury of rabid fanatics commanding a black based organization dedicated to the sabotage and destruction of a nation. The new Klansen have proclaimed that liberal democracy is a system of antiblackness and must be replaced by a global network of black communities, black thugs, black enforcers, black lynch mobs and black death squads which will create a world which social justice demands. A world in which blacks hold all social, economic and political power and a world which is free of whites: "Four years ago, what is now known as the Black Lives Matter Global Network began to organize. It started out as a chapter based, member led organization whose mission was to build local power and to intervene when violence was inflicted on black communities by the state and vigilantes. In the years since, we've committed to struggling together and to imagining and creating a world free of antiblackness, where every black person has the social, economic, and political power to thrive." (What We Believe, Black Lives Matter). Listen to the voices and defenders of the black Hitlerites' dream of white annihilation. They have proclaimed that a progressive society is one which resounds with calls to action for antiwhite racism and state sanctioned violence against whites. They have proclaimed that a progressive society is one in the raging grip of antiwhite politicians and under the iron heel of antiwhite legislation. They have proclaimed that a progressive society is one which has galvanized black racist scum from

every corner of the earth to connect and commit themselves to a program of uncontrolled violence against whites in the name of racial justice. They have proclaimed that a progressive society is one in which black killers of whites are automatically acquitted in court and have marched on capital cities and seized the reins of government. They have proclaimed that a progressive society is roaring, blaring ride for black freedom, black power, black justice and black defense and ends high atop the mountains of the promised land of a global holocaust against whites. They have proclaimed that a progressive society is a political and ideological home for blacks who hate whites and who seek to smash the structures and facilities of law and civilization. They have proclaimed that the supreme embodiment of moral perfection is a catalyst, a rabble rouser, an agitator, an organizer, a conspirator and an incendiary in the service of an antiwhite movement and culture whose goal is to target whites in their neighborhoods, homes, schools and offices and place them in maximum danger everywhere they live, breathe, move and work: "Black Lives Matter began as a call to action in response to state sanctioned violence and antiblack racism. Our intention from the very beginning was to connect black people from all over the world who have a shared desire for justice to act together in their communities. The impetus for that commitment was, and still is, the rampant and deliberate violence inflicted on us by the state. Enraged by the death of Trayvon Martin and the subsequent acquittal of his killer, George Zimmerman, and inspired by the 31 day takeover of the Florida State Capitol by POWER U and the Dream Defenders, we took to the streets. A year later, we set out together on the Black Lives Matter Freedom Ride to Ferguson, in search of justice for Mike Brown and all of those who have been torn apart by state sanctioned violence and antiblack racism. Forever changed, we returned home and began building the infrastructure for the Black Lives Matter Global Network, which, even in its infancy, has become a political home for many. Ferguson helped to catalyze a movement to which we've all helped give life. Organizers who call this network home have ousted antiblack politicians, won critical legislation to benefit black lives, and changed the terms of the debate on blackness around the world. Through movement and relationship building, we have also helped catalyze other movements and shifted culture with an eye toward the dangerous impacts of antiblackness." (What We Believe, Black Lives Matter). Listen to the membership, partners, supporters and staff of a global black national socialist family which is hell bent on the destruction of the order and institutions predicated upon the Age of Enlightenment. This unholy multitude has proclaimed that the killing of white people is justified in the name of the liberation of blacks. It has proclaimed that murder is not murder if committed to achieve the collective freedom of the black tribe. It has proclaimed that a progressive society is one in which black psychopaths who enjoy torturing and killing whites are seen, heard and applauded on every college campus and esteemed as the people's national heroes. It has proclaimed that the ancestors of today's black assassins were the angels in heaven and every black predator who roams the streets in search of white victims has divine blood coursing through his veins. It has proclaimed that a progressive society is one lorded over by the friends and allies of the black revolution who will make the world safe and secure for every beggar, thief, wastrel, ignoramus, pervert, degenerate and psychotic who swims and crawls through the sewers and cesspools so long as his face is colored black. It has proclaimed that the liberal system of equal protection, equal opportunity and advancement by merit and not by skin color has inflicted deep wounds on the lives of worthless, contemptible, incompetent, morally disabled, psychologically disturbed black brothers and sisters and must be replaced by a regime of black discrimination, black affirmative action, black special treatment and black totalitarian dictatorship. It has proclaimed that a progressive society is one which recognizes that black lives matter and only black lives matter and the lives of whites are the lives of morally stunted, deficient, evil beings and must be stamped out forever. It has proclaimed that the notion of a universal rational human essence is a liberal, bourgeois, Enlightenment superstition. In point of fact, blacks and whites share nothing in common and show only differences; the differences between blacks and whites are the differences between human beings and apes; and blacks everywhere must bond together, proudly and openly announce the moral and spiritual superiority of blacks to whites, the exalted beauty of the black soul and the monstrous ugliness of the white soul, and the entitlement of blacks to freedom, privileges and social justice. Blacks must build and nurture a virulent hatred of whites and launch a killing spree against every white man, woman and child on the planet: "The Black Lives Matter Global Network is as powerful as it is because of our membership, our partners, our supporters, our staff, and you. Our continued commitment to liberation for all black people means we are continuing the work of our ancestors and fighting for our collective freedom because it is our duty. Every day, we recommit to healing ourselves and each other, and to cocreating alongside comrades, allies, and family a culture where each person feels seen, heard, and supported. We acknowledge, respect, and celebrate differences and commonalities. We work vigorously for freedom and justice for black people and, by extension, all people. We intentionally build and nurture a beloved community that is bonded together through a beautiful struggle that is restorative, not depleting. We are unapologetically black in our positioning. In affirming that Black Lives Matter, we need not qualify our position. To love and desire freedom and justice for ourselves is a prerequisite for wanting the same for others. We see ourselves as part of the global black family, and we are aware of the different ways we are impacted or privileged as black people who exist in different parts of the world. We are guided by the fact that all black lives matter, regardless of actual or perceived sexual identity, gender identity, gender expression, economic status, ability, disability, religious beliefs or disbeliefs, immigration status, or location. We make space for transgender brothers and sisters to participate and lead." (What We Believe, Black Lives Matter). The end of the Civil War saw the birth of a Klan nation in the heartlands of America. Then commenced the midnight rides lit up by the fiery crosses of race hatred. Over the ensuing decades, the rides never stopped nor did the race hatred nor did the Klan lay down their robes. What changed was that the reds took over the horses, the robes and the crosses and changed the targets. Riding under the banners of black privilege and black power, the black Klansmen of Black Lives Matter have galloped into the twenty first century and reduced the liberal democratic polity to dust.

THREE CHEERS FOR THREE AMERICANS

A maverick is an unorthodox, uncommon, unusual, independent minded individual who often provokes hostility and antagonism from the people around him. In the field of politics, mavericks wear the mark of Cain and are drawn, quartered and burned in effigy because they challenge and resist the religion of the establishment set forth by the reds. Proudly swimming against the current by championing the rights, freedoms and dignity of the individual, political mavericks are routinely cast in the role of a nation's villains and are permanently excluded from its pantheon of heroes. Prior to the twentieth century, today's political mavericks would have been lauded by the masses as models and exemplars of outstanding statesmanship and skill in managing public affairs for the maximization of personal liberty. In the upside down world which emerged in the twentieth century, these same mavericks are treated as outcasts and pariahs and school children are taught to utter their names in shame. The constant, unremitting barrage of vilification and abuse to which they are subjected serves as a striking indicator of just how morally sick and bankrupt

today's society is. In America, three political mavericks have stood out since the dawn of the twentieth century as persistent reproaches to the statist trend of American society, as nagging reminders of the moral failings of America and its descent into red totalitarian tyranny, and as brave, determined public figures whose rejection of the political mainstream and rejection by the political mainstream taught the vanishing minority of civilized Americans how the mainstream has disgraced, discredited and brought undying shame to the American nation which it claims to represent, to the nation conceived two centuries ago in the dreams of human liberty and dedicated to principle of constitutional rights. These three political mavericks are Joe McCarthy, Barry Goldwater and Donald Trump. Listen to these stalwart figures as they confront the enemies of freedom and champion this noble cause at home, abroad and throughout the world. Listen to Joe McCarthy who exposed nests of red collaborators, sympathizers and security risks at work at the highest levels of the government shaping and guiding national policy. Who exposed individuals who by virtue of their friends, associates, colleagues and the company they kept could not be trusted with the privilege of holding sensitive government posts. Who exposed a morally decayed and decadent swampland called the American political establishment, the members of which were exalted as the nation's best, brightest and most educated, but were in reality agents and carriers of an international red movement and conspiracy. Who exposed the secret plans of traitors and saboteurs working assiduously on the national scene to establish the hegemony of the Communist Party and its Soviet masters in America. Who exposed the disloyalty to America of the highest and most senior governmental officials and their unswerving loyalty to the cause of the reds. Who exposed the moral abominations running the nation's top governmental departments, and extinguished the sparks and flames of internal subversion, and reestablished honesty, decency and integrity in government: "The reason why we find ourselves in a position of impotency is not because our only powerful potential enemy has sent men to invade our shores. but rather because of the traitorous actions of those who have been treated so well by this nation. It has not been the less fortunate, or members of minority groups who have been traitorous to this nation, but rather those who have had all the benefits that the wealthiest nation on earth has had to offer the finest homes, the finest college education and the finest jobs in government we can give. This is glaringly true in the State Department. There the bright young men who are born with silver spoons in their mouths are the ones who have been most traitorous. I have here in my hand a list of 205, a list of names that were made known to the Secretary of State as being members of the Communist Party and who nevertheless are still working and shaping policy in the State Department. As you know, very recently the Secretary of State proclaimed his loyalty to a man guilty of what has always been considered as the most abominable of all crimes—being a traitor to the people who gave him a position of great trust—high treason. He has lighted the spark which is resulting in a moral uprising and will end only when the whole sorry mess of twisted, warped thinkers are swept from the national scene so that we may have a new birth of honesty and decency in government." (Speech of Joseph McCarthy, Wheeling, West Virginia). Listen to Barry Goldwater who sought to secure America from the incursions of red tyranny and to make the world safe for the institutions of freedom. Who sought to marshal the strength and resources of America in a world historical struggle to preserve liberal capitalist civilization. Who championed the Republican Party as the party of Lincoln, the party of liberty, the party of the federal constitution, the party of limited government, and the party of America. Who sought to free the American people from a welfare state leviathan and social regulatory monster which rejected constitutional restraints and rendered the rule of law null and void. Who denounced the spurious claims of social justice proselytizers and the preachers of tribal solidarity upon the rights, freedoms and dignity of the individual.

Who sought to reestablish constitutional jurisprudence which had been hijacked and assassinated by red judges who reinterpreted the constitution beyond all recognition and declared it to be a manifesto of untrammeled majority rule and rank collectivist politics. Who bravely stood up to the mob and upheld the sanctity of private property and the right of private business establishments, guaranteed under the Constitution, to set the terms and conditions of their employment, accommodation and service to the public. Who defied the strictures of the establishment and the will of the majority and promoted the cause of healthy, wholesome, morally invigorating, all American extremism: extremism in the defense of individual liberty, extremism in the pursuit of individual justice, and extremism in the consolidation of liberal, humane, Enlightenment values: "Today, as then, but more urgently and more broadly than then, the task of preserving and enlarging freedom at home and safeguarding it from the forces of tyranny abroad is great enough to challenge all our resources and to require all our strength. Anyone who joins us in all sincerity, we welcome. Those who do not care for our cause, we don't expect to enter our ranks in any case. And let our Republicanism, so focused and so dedicated, not be made fuzzy and futile by unthinking and stupid labels. I would remind you that extremism in the defense of liberty is no vice. And let me remind you also that moderation in the pursuit of justice is no virtue. The beauty of the very system we Republicans are pledged to restore and revitalize, the beauty of this Federal system of ours is in its reconciliation of diversity with unity. We must not see malice in honest differences of opinion, and no matter how great, so long as they are not inconsistent with the pledges we have given to each other in and through our Constitution. Our Republican cause is not to level out the world or make its people conform in computer regimented sameness. Our Republican cause is to free our people and light the way for liberty throughout the world. Ours is a very human cause for very humane goals. This Party, its good people, and its unquestionable devotion to freedom, will not fulfill the purposes of this campaign which we launch here now until our cause has won the day, inspired the world, and shown the way to a tomorrow worthy of all our yesteryears." (1964 Acceptance Speech at the Republican National Convention by Barry Goldwater). Following in the footsteps of McCarthy and Goldwater, Donald Trump has defied the ruling red dispensation and set forth a philosophy to restore the rule of reason, liberty, sanity and traditional American values to public life. A minority president who lost the popular vote by nearly three million, Trump has sought to roll back the legacy of Barack Obama and the trend of far left radicalism which has engulfed the nation over the past quarter century and on every point his philosophy is at odds with the red ethos of the man on the street. Trump believes that the federal government has no authority to order individuals to obtain health care. He believes that the individual health care mandate is a penalty and not a tax and that the notion of a penalty-tax is a contradiction in terms. He believes that Antifa is a terrorist movement and organization and that the philosophy of the reds, the philosophy of tribal politics and gender, race and class hatred, must be unreservedly condemned by all right thinking Americans. He believes that agitators of class hatred are on par with agitators of race hatred and that both are essential players in the red program to overthrow the Western liberal democratic order. He believes that universities must protect and promote freedom of speech on campus and prohibit acts of violence and intimidation and the enforcement of political correctness by the forces of the left. He believes that university students who are accused of sexual assault are entitled to enjoy full due process of law protections such as the presumption of innocence, the right to confront and cross examine accusers, and the right not to be found guilty without independent, corroborating evidence. He believes that private business owners have the right to refuse to provide services which violate their conscience and beliefs. He believes that sex is determined by immutable biological facts and is not

changeable and that transgenderism is an assault on science and reality. He believes that environmentalism is a doomsday religion whose advocacy of zero carbon emissions is a deliberate program of destruction of technological progress and industrial civilization. He believes that the removal of historical monuments and the expunging of commercial brands is a movement of dismantling and erasure of Western capitalism and the legacy of the Enlightenment. He believes that the function of judges is to interpret the law in accordance with its plain, objective meaning and not in accordance with social, political or ideological considerations. When Ronald Reagan was elected president, he was no longer Ronald Reagan but had undergone a makeover in which his conservative credentials dissolved in a smiling ocean of warm congeniality. By contrast, Trump has always been Trump, just as Goldwater was always Goldwater and McCarthy was always McCarthy. Therein lies the essential characteristic of the political maverick: undeviating commitment to the cause of freedom and a political substance which determines political style. The NeverTrumpers, such as Irving Kristol, George Conway and George Will, who profess to disdain Trump's political style are in reality closet reds who reject Trump's political substance. Supporting the Civil Rights Act of 1964, including its prohibition of discrimination in private business establishments, Will turned red two decades ago. Defying both in style and substance the red orthodoxy which has governed America since the turn of the twentieth century, three political mavericks under the names of McCarthy, Goldwater and Trump have shown in their careers of courage the treason of the American majority.

ANTIFA TAKES OVER THE WEST

Fire brigades throughout the world employ a system of color codes to define levels of fire danger. For the lowest level of danger, the color code is green. For the highest level, the color code is red. This color indicates a fire which starts quickly, spreads furiously and burns intensely. Decent, civilized, law abiding people, dedicated to the preservation of Western liberal values, have alerted their friends and neighbors to a fire raging out of control across the world and have used the color code red to signal their concern. This is the fire of violent occupation staged by members of the Antifa movement and it has consumed every major city in the West. Although a hundred years in the making, the result of the treachery of the Western masses who turned their backs on liberal capitalism in the early decades of the twentieth century, the invasions and attacks by Antifa exploded suddenly in the late twentieth and early twenty first centuries, the final result of a century long social, political and ideological crescendo, and have spread furiously and intensely across Europe and America, and burned the houses of law and order and liberal jurisprudence to the ground. What began as the paramilitary wing of the German Communist Party in the 1920s, the Antifaschistische Aktion, whose aim was to eliminate both its rival brother national socialists together with the liberal democratic opposition, has expanded into a global movement which has transformed modern cities into savage jungles presided over by warlords shouting slogans of social justice backed by the gun barrels of the people's liberation brigades. Look at a map of Europe and America and see a swath of destruction advancing from Stockholm to San Francisco and placing the few voices of liberty remaining in the grip of panic and fear, while the masses celebrate it as a movement of block parties and arts festivals enforcing the people's progressive rule of gender, race and class politics. Look at lawless, antipolice, no go squatter sites encamped across Europe under the control of Antifa. Look at Rota Flora in Hamburg, a former theater occupied by Antifa since 1989. Look at Riga 94, an apartment complex in Berlin occupied by Antifa since 1990. Look at the Antifa members who successfully fought an eviction from the complex by taking to the streets and attacking police and banks, smashing storefronts, and setting automobiles on fire across Berlin. Look at the ZADs, Zones A Défendre, set up by Antifa and located throughout France. There are ZADs in L'Amassada, Bure, Moulin, Notre Dame des Landes, Roybon and Testet. Look at the Paris suburb of Bagnolet, which contains a building whose entrance sign reads: "Welcome to our Paris HQ Antifa". Look at the former Olympic Village in Turin, Italy, which has been occupied by Antifa since 2006. Look at the highest levels of the German government and see the fearsome tentacles of Antifa at work. See prominent legal careers placed in the service of far left extremists. See constitutional courts transformed into soapboxes for the advocacy of violent revolution. See the Office for the Protection of the Constitution transformed into an organization for the aid and comfort of the reds. See court cases utilized to argue for the right of individuals to commit criminal acts in the name of the liberation of the working class. See supreme court judges conspiring in the shadows and planning acts of sabotage in their conferences and chambers. See courtrooms transformed into theaters of agitation and propaganda seeking to overthrow liberal constitutionalism. See constitutional deliberations subverted by an agenda to provide leftist criminals and violent offenders with moral, legal, political and financial support and to grant them immunity from prosecution. See supreme court judges declaring total war against capitalist freedom, liberal democracy, constitutionally bound and delimited government, and the agencies of national security. See judges ignore the the commands of the law and became rubber stamps for red public opinion and its support for the forces of terror. See judicial authorities hand down rulings, instructions and exhortations to open up the prisons, sewers and mental hospitals of society and let red extremists and psychopaths run amok across the land. See national capitals transformed into headquarters of the reds and the seats of a new antigovernment organized to sweep away the legacies of the Enlightenment, the legacies of reason, science, progress and human flourishing, and establish a people's republic of Marxists, Islamists, Kurds, Kikuyu and Bantus in their place: "A constitutional judge in Hamburg has been linked to Germany's far left extremist Antifa scene as well as the banned Kurdistan Workers' Party (PKK) terrorist group. Judge Cornelia Ganten-Lange, formerly an asylum lawyer, was elected to the Hamburg constitutional court in 2009 and again in 2015. She has been reported to have a deep history with Antifa far left extremists during her legal career. She has previously spoken at events held by the organization Rote Hilfe, or Red Help, which is classified as extremist by the German Federal Office for the Protection of the Constitution. She spoke on topics relating to Turkish far left extremists after representing several members of the PKK terror group in court cases. According to a report from German newspaper Die Welt, at least one of these conferences was held at the notorious Rote Flora building, an abandoned theater in Hamburg that has been occupied by far left Antifa extremists for over thirty years and is regarded as their headquarters in the city. Along with the Rigaer 94 squat in Berlin, Rote Flora is regarded as one of the most important headquarters of Antifa in Germany and was their base for the 2017 G20 riots. Rote Hilfe is described by the Federal Office for the Protection of the Constitution (BfV) as a legal organization that provides 'criminal and violent offenders from the left wing extremist spectrum with political and financial support, for example in the case of legal and litigation costs as well as fines'. They add that the group also attempts 'to discredit the security and judicial authorities and democracy based on the rule of law through public opinion work'. Ganten-Lange has also spoken for a similar legal fund for Kurds called Azadi which is also classified as extremist and is linked to the terrorist PKK. 'There are close ties to PKK related organizations and the left wing extremist prison aid organization Rote Hilfe eV', a BfV report claimed." (Hamburg Judge Linked To Far Left Antifa Extremists And Banned Kurdish Terrorist Group by Chris Tomlinson). Look at the outlaw regime set up by Antifa in Seattle and see the fearsome workings of a mob dedicated to a life of crime. See a culture of murder, robbery, victimization and devastation justified as an imperative of social equity. See the violation of people's rights and the assassination of the police legitimized in the name of the oppressed and the marginalized. See liberal democratic communities replaced by red autonomous zones with an agenda of socialism and statism painted in the rainbow colors of identity politics. See mayors and police chiefs replaced by red commanders whose brutal ferocity is matched only by their hatred of the law. See gangs of red activists overrun peaceful cities and place every home, street, block and precinct in a vice grip of extortion, exaction, force and intimidation. See the red riders of an apocalypse reduce righteous neighborhoods to scenes of crimes planned, crimes in progress and crimes completed, and compel every decent, law abiding resident, every father, mother, brother and sister who upholds liberal values in a civilized society, to place emergency calls to nonexistent police forces and then run for their lives: "Police have been unable to respond to 'rapes, robberies, and all sorts of violent acts' occurring in Seattle's East Precinct, which authorities abandoned on Monday, leaving the area in the hands of activists who set up their own police free 'Capitol Hill Autonomous Zone' (CHAZ), Seattle Police Chief Carmen Best said Thursday. The police chief is now working on a plan to reopen the precinct, telling reporters calls for service 'have more than tripled.' 'These are responses to emergency calls—rapes, robberies, and all sorts of violent acts that have been occurring in the area that we're not able to get to,' she said. Emergency response times in the area have tripled, she noted, going from just over five minutes to 18 minutes. 'If that is your mother, your sister, your cousin, your neighbor's kid that is being raped, robbed assaulted (or) otherwise victimized, you're not going to want to have to report that it took the police three times longer to get there to provide services to them,' Best said. 'It was never an option to have residents of the precinct, many of whom are members of our most marginalized communities by the way, waiting for an extra length of time for an officer to arrive to a violent crime in progress,' she stated. The police chief also confirmed someone breached the building, which was abandoned on Monday." (Seattle Police Chief: Cops 'Not Able to' Respond to Rapes, Robberies Due To Autonomous Zone by Hannah Bleau). Alarm bells are ringing through the night but the masses do not hear them. Maps of Europe and America are going up in flames but the masses do not see them. Ideologies of collectivism and dictatorship spill their blood across newspapers and web pages but the masses do not condemn them. Morally blind, deaf, mute and unthinking, the masses have donned the Antifa garb of black masks and black bloc and commenced an assault against Western civilization.

THE HEAVY TRUNCHEONS OF THE THOUGHT POLICE

Those who knew him called him Samaritan. He was the best friend and neighbor a person could have, honest, decent, virtuous, benevolent and industrious. One day, while he was riding on a train to return home from work, he fell into a dream. In his dream, he was in a world which was perpetually gray, dark and dismal. The thought and speech of the population were controlled by omnipresent surveillance. Raging mobs and their governmental henchmen suppressed images and ideas which deviated from the ways of thinking deemed to be politically correct. The thought police had a mandate to search for, find, monitor and expunge all forms of expression which transgressed the strictures of social justice. The reds had assumed control over newsrooms, schools, businesses and government. They held social justice seminars in which it was unanimously agreed that people have a right to be protected from words and pictures which were opposed to Marxism and offended the sensibilities of radical women, radical blacks, radical homosexuals, radical transgenders

and the radical poor. The reds had deplatformed conservatives, libertarians and supporters of Donald Trump, preventing them from meeting and engaging in public debate, on the grounds that their views and opinions were unacceptable and offensive to progressive communities. They removed the iconic image of a Native American woman from Land O'Lakes butter packages on the grounds that images of indigenous people on Western capitalist products constitutes insensitivity toward savage, backward, nonWestern cultures. They removed commercial brand names such as Aunt Jemima on the grounds that names and images of blacks on Western capitalist products constitute an endorsement of slavery. On the grounds that images of blacks engaged in the culinary arts and exhibiting pride, dignity, competence and professionalism in their work constitute unabashed racism and a romanticization of black exclusion. On the grounds that images of blacks with warm, friendly, appealing personalities cooking for millions and revered for their cooking are disrespectful stereotypes of blacks and incitements to discrimination. On the grounds that images of blacks preparing popular American food violate the principles of racial equality and constitute nostalgia for the plantation. On the grounds that consumers expect absolute adherence to the tenets of political correctness in all corporate marketing campaigns and will only purchase brand portfolios granted an official license and seal approval by the reds. On the grounds that commercial brands must be constantly updated to reflect the most recent red political commitments and changes in the red party line. On the grounds that images of black women who are accomplished storytellers and artful in the kitchen are an endorsement of the antebellum degradation. On the grounds that images of black achievements and respect and popularity among whites are blatant images of black inferiority. On the grounds that images of black excellence, black flourishing and black showmanship are symbols of the preCivil War era when blacks were subjected to unremitting lashes of terror and abuse. In his dream, Samaritan saw red corporations donating millions of dollars to the cause of black racism, black separatism, the black will to power, the black war to enforce political correctness, the black campaign to establish preferential treatment on the basis of race and deny educational and employment opportunities to whites, and the black dismantling of the Western, liberal democratic order. He saw the black community radicalized by the reds and placing America under constant, relentless attack. He saw cities across America remove historical monuments commemorating statesmen and generals who fought for the cause of freedom and fought on freedom's soil on the grounds that such exhibitions show insensitivity to black culture which hates America and the equal opportunity, meritocratic system which America symbolizes. He saw crowds of red protesters defacing, destroying and pulling down statues commemorating the people who founded America, who fought for American freedom and independence, who fought for the principle of equal protection under the law without regard to race or color, and who fought to make the world safe for freedom for their children and their children's children. He saw civilization descend into a vortex of mass disturbances, mass disruptions, mass disorder, mass agitation, mass killing, mass rioting and mass looting planned, organized and carried out by hoodlums marching under the banners of Black Lives Matter: "Quaker Foods, the company behind the Aunt Jemima brand of syrup and other breakfast foods, says it will rename this line of products and discontinue its label's image of a black woman 'to make progress toward racial equality'. Aunt Jemima has been featured on these products for 130 years. NBC reported on the development:

The picture has changed over time, and in recent years Quaker removed the mammy kerchief from the character to blunt growing criticism that the brand perpetuated a racist stereotype that dated to the days of slavery. But Quaker, a

subsidiary of PepsiCo, said removing the image and name is part of an effort by the company 'to make progress toward racial equality.'

'We recognize Aunt Jemima's origins are based on a racial stereotype,' Kristin Kroepfl, vice president and chief marketing officer of Quaker Foods North America, said in a press release. 'As we work to make progress toward racial equality through several initiatives, we also must take a hard look at our portfolio of brands and ensure they reflect our values and meet our consumers' expectations.'

Kroepfl said the company has worked to 'update' the brand to be 'appropriate and respectful' but it realized the changes were insufficient.

"As an example of 'consumers' expectations,' NBC quoted Riche Richardson, an associate professor at Cornell University, who said Aunt Jemima is 'a retrograde image of black womanhood on store shelves.' 'It's an image that harkens back to the antebellum plantation. Aunt Jemima is that kind of stereotype is premised on this idea of black inferiority and otherness,' Richardson said. 'It is urgent to expunge our public spaces of a lot of these symbols that for some people are triggering and represent terror and abuse,' he declared. 'Quaker said the new packaging will begin to appear in the fall of 2020, and a new name for the foods will be announced at a later date,' NBC reported. 'The company also announced it will donate at least \$5 million over the next five years 'to create meaningful, ongoing support and engagement in the black community.' The purge of Aunt Jemima comes as a wave of municipalities across the United States are removing historical monuments for similar complaints of racial insensitivity. Crowds of protesters have defaced or even destroyed statues of notable figures from the Civil War era Confederate States of America, Founding Fathers, veterans, and even abolitionists. The current unrest was sparked by a string of racially charged killings: Ahmaud Arbery in Georgia, Breonna Taylor in Kentucky, and George Floyd in Minnesota. As the Black Lives Matter movement organized protests across the nation, some of which descended into violent riots and looting, tensions flared again after Atlanta police shot and killed another unarmed man, Rayshard Brooks. Mere weeks before this unrest, another food brand removed a longstanding label icon over perceived racial insensitivity. Land O'Lakes announced in April it would remove the likeness of a Native American woman from its butter products after 92 years." (Quaker Foods To Rename 'Aunt Jemima' Scrub Logo 'To Make Progress Toward Racial Equality' by Penny Starr and Ezra Dulis). Samaritan saw a vertiginous whirl of images dance through his dream. He saw a statue of Winston Churchill defaced in London. He saw a statue of Christopher Columbus removed from a park in St Louis, Missouri. He saw a statue of John McDonogh pulled down in Duncan Plaza in New Orleans and dumped into the Mississippi River. He saw a statue of Thomas Jefferson defaced and pulled down at a high school in Portland, Oregon. He saw the Tomb of the Unknown Soldier of the American Revolution, which features a statue of George Washington, defaced. He saw Oriel College of Oxford pull down a statue of Cecil Rhodes. Samaritan was jolted out of his nightmare by the conductor asking for tickets. When he disembarked and looked around him, he saw that the frightening, unpleasant images in his dream were all a reality. He must have been asleep for a hundred years. The next day, he went back on board the train and disembarked at an old, abandoned cemetery with a rusted entrance gate and there he joined the dead.

THE SOUL SNATCHERS

The place is Anytown, USA and the time is the early decades of the twenty first century. Mr X has been away for five years on a business trip abroad and has returned home. The people he meets, his family, friends and associates, look the same on the outside but have changed in their spirit and soul and seem like imposters. These are not the people he had said goodbye to five years before. They say things he had never heard them say before and he is filled with feelings of fear and foreboding for the future of the nation. Since he left five years ago, there has been an ideological invasion which has removed people's reason and conscience and transformed them into soulless life forms moved by programmed instructions. No longer themselves, the people around him have become the fearsome and terrifying carriers of an invasion of the reds which has put an end to freedom in America. He should have seen this coming, he should have seen the warning signs all around him, for this invasion had been over a century in the making. It was the final development of a process of mass treason which commenced around the turn of the twentieth century and saw ordinary people abandon the principles of liberal democracy upon which the nation had been founded and embrace the politics of hatred, envy jealousy, victimhood and class revolution. It saw ordinary people corroborating the diagnosis of the masses made two thousand years ago by Socrates, Plato and Aristotle and rejecting the natural, inalienable right of the individual to live and work for himself, to rationally flourish for himself, to perfect himself and to live as human beings ought to live, and willingly and enthusiastically accept in its place a religion of communal distribution, welfare, service, sacrifice and enslavement. In historical time, the five years during which Mr X was away occurred in the blink of the eye; this blink was the final spark in a hundred year long series of red coruscations; and this final spark lit the fuse which finally, definitively and conclusively blew up the nation and established the physical take over and occupation of America by the reds. The new invaders, the new occupiers, Mr X's family, friends and associates, delivered a program and manifesto to him whose frenzy, fanaticism and wanton disregard for the rights of others made him run for his life, sound an alarm bell, and warn the world about the doom and destruction which have come for them. Devoid all rational, civilized, enlightened humanity, the red automatons around him uttered words which he did not want to believe but had to believe and had to do something about. The people he once knew proclaimed that a progressive society is an anticapitalist society in which every man, woman and child has got on board a socialist bandwagon and designated activist thugs to block freedom of speech. They proclaimed that a progressive society is one which conducts militant, round the clock protests against the liberal order and does not shrink from using violence against innocent people. They proclaimed that a progressive society is one which has sanctioned the takeover of industrial management by the people's state thugs and the reduction of free laborers to the level of servants of the community. They proclaimed that a progressive society is a red supremacist organization which is ready, willing and able to commit violent crimes to promote their political beliefs. They proclaimed that a progressive society is one which instigates violent clashes with the opponents of Marxism and enforces an ideological outlook which justifies rank criminality in the service of the people. They proclaimed that a progressive society is a movement of radicals opposed to Enlightenment values who have packaged their opposition in red sandbags labeled anarchism, socialism, communism, environmentalism, homosexual rights and the rights of indigenous populations and hurled them in the faces of civilized people. They proclaimed that a progressive society is a tribalist society which has rejected the liberal principles of individual rights and advancement by merit and fallen under the control of gender, race and class skinheads and Klan riders on behalf of women, nonwhites and the poor. They proclaimed that a progressive society is a centralized, monolithic movement and structure which has compiled a list of enemies comprising the friends of liberty, humane values, scientific progress and the rule of law and crushed beneath its weight the voices of liberal dissent. They proclaimed that a progressive society is a nationalist, supremacist society which has abolished civil liberties and placed absolute power into the hands of gender, race and class commissars. They proclaimed that a progressive society is a red echo chamber from top to bottom which provides safe harbor to communist and fascist hoodlums at federal, state and local levels and has intimidated and suppressed conservatives and libertarians at public marches with a massive show of force. They proclaimed that the supreme model for the people is a social justice warrior who engages in violent criminality and takes the law into his own hands when confronting the voices of virtue and order who express their ideas in a peaceful, rational, disputational manner. Look at the citizens of the new red America and see how they have placed armed thugs and ruthless extortionists in charge of their people's soviet socialist autonomous republics. See how they have burned and ransacked lawfully constituted police stations and proclaimed Marxist warlords to be the new chiefs of police. See how they have forced the law to abandon and retreat from its bases and buildings and relinquish the streets to chaos. See how they have confiscated private homes, schools, shops and offices and declared them to be the property of the progressive working class. See how they have defended, dismantled and dissolved the institutions of free people, and outlawed the enforcement of order. See how they have rammed tanks into the soldiers of liberty and deported the defenders of constitutional government. See how they have transformed towns and cities into police free zones in which they have perfected the tactics of revolution and sharpened the razor blades of sadistic violence. See how they have organized marches and demonstrations carrying weapons, shield and helmets, and wearing the swastika armbands of gender, race and class politics, and gone on a rampage of street fights and criminal aggression justified as the defense of social justice. See how they have taken over the nation, house by house, street by street, block by block, precinct by precinct, town by town, city by city, and state by state, and in mass demonstrations, multiple shootings and festivals of violence and intimidation, how they have announced the end of the liberal democratic order: "Seattle police say they have received reports of armed guards and potential extortion in a self declared autonomous zone that spans several blocks and includes a now closed precinct. 'We've heard, anecdotally, reports of citizens and businesses being asked to pay a fee to operate within this area. This is the crime of extortion. If anyone has been subjected to this, we need them to call 911,' Assistant Chief of Police Deanna Nollette said on Wednesday. The seemingly abandoned East Precinct station of the Seattle Police Department is covered in a tarp declaring it 'property of the Seattle people'. Protesters declared a Cop Free Zone following days of demonstrations in response to the police involved death of George Floyd in Minneapolis. Protesters calling to defund the police and make sweeping reforms to law enforcement tactics have declared a six block region-spanning 13th Avenue past 11th Avenue, near Cal Anderson Park, and from East Olive Street to East Pike Street-- the 'Capitol Hill Autonomous Zone' (CHAZ). The region encompasses the SPD's East Precinct, which was abandoned by cops on Monday following days of violent clashes between law enforcement and protesters in the wake of George Floyd's death, as well as parts of Capitol Hill. Officers retreated from the area in an effort to quell the violence-- which included multiple shootings, one that was sparked after a man rammed his vehicle into a crowd of protesters." (Seattle 'Autonomous Zone' Has Armed Guards, Local Businesses Being Threatened With Extortion, Police Say by Vandana Rambaran). Those who seek to warn their neighbors about the red juggernaut moving in on free

institutions are engaged in a vain enterprise. It is too late to warn people because the reds are here in vast numbers and have taken control over the people's souls. The voices of the opposition who have resisted indoctrination have been chased by red mobs bent on destroying them and been forced to hide and seek refuge wherever they can. They have seen the reds load tyranny and fear onto trucks and unload them across the nation, and screamed out to their fellow citizens not to be the next victims, but few remain to listen.

JAWS

In 1916 between July 1 to 12, there was a series of shark attacks along the Jersey shore which killed four people. Making headlines around the world, the attacks during these twelve days of terror occurred when thousands of people were at the shore during the summer heat wave and revealed sharks to be fearless, ruthless, relentless killers. Civilized people have viewed the Jersey shore attacks of 1916 as providing a fitting metaphor for the current wave of violence, revolution and insurrection sweeping across the West and consuming its final hours. In this metaphor, the sharks stand for the reds who have been sabotaging liberal institutions for over one hundred years and the attacks at the shore stand for the final campaign of destruction, as the climax and culmination of this development, bringing forth the actual, physical overthrow of civilization. Two decades into the twenty first century, the red masses who control the West have achieved victory on the streets and squares and victory in the houses of culture. After decades of fighting, the culture wars have finally concluded, and listen now to the voices of the victors. They have proclaimed that liberal democracy is a system of white privilege and white racism and must be replaced by a black totalitarian dictatorship on whose banners are inscribed *Black Lives Matter*. They have proclaimed that whites must make a full and unequivocal confession of their crime of existing and get on board an I Take Responsibility movement and offer themselves up as sacrificial victims grovelling on the altars of their black overlords. They have proclaimed that a progressive society is one under the iron grip of race baiting, neoMarxist hoodlums bearing the slogans and emblems of black nationalism and black power. They have proclaimed that a progressive society is one in which journalists, editors, film stars, television stars, pop stars, radio show hosts and bestselling authors kneel and touch the ground in worship and submission to the red guards of black fascism. They have proclaimed that a progressive society is one under the control of a radical left, Taliban movement called Black Lives Matter whose program consists in smashing monuments and statues and spreading violence in the streets. They have proclaimed that a progressive society is one which has banned films such as Gone With The Wind on the grounds of political incorrectness while allowing such films as Mission To Moscow, which peddles overt communist propaganda, wide, unrestricted, uncensored circulation. They have proclaimed that a progressive society is a social justice movement which has granted special privileges to women and nonwhites and allowed women to persecute men with false or frivolous sexual assault allegations, based on nothing more than an accusation or a series of accusations, and has allowed blacks to escape arrest and apprehension for their crimes on the grounds that any use of force by the police is a sign of police racism and brutality. They have proclaimed that white heterosexual males should be ashamed of themselves because their very act of existing poses a mortal threat to the rights of blacks and homosexuals and they should apologize to these groups and agree to relinquish their jobs and careers to them. They have proclaimed that a progressive society is a mob of social justice warriors which has invaded physical and digital space and removed toys, books, films and television programs which symbolize or support the world of freedom and capitalism and hurled these

politically problematic works into the bonfires of the people. They have proclaimed that a progressive society is one which has instituted censorship of artistic productions and removed all scenes, moments, characters and words which offend the sensibilities of the reds' chosen gender, race and class groups. They have proclaimed that a progressive society is one in which the purveyors of entertainment are the promoters of political correctness and have forced the voices of artistic integrity into the underground cells of cultural nonexistence. They have proclaimed that a progressive society is one which has burned to ashes the Enlightenment edifice of human liberty, independent thought and rational flourishing and replaced it with a tribal jungle of woke values promoting social justice, feminist politics, homosexual rights, transgender rights, black rights, indigenous rights, and the extermination of light skinned, blue eyed people. Across the West, the reds have moved in on the streets, set up separate nations, ignited whirlwinds of violence and destruction, and read out their proclamations of a new totalitarian order. Listen to the words they have uttered which have shocked and horrified civilized people. They have proclaimed that a progressive society is one which has voted Marxist tyrants into power and voted out law and order. They have proclaimed that a progressive society is a police free zone and a block party celebrating blood and violence. They have proclaimed that the people's supreme statesmen are Marxist warlords who have seized territory, occupied cities, demarcated perimeters, constructed barriers, set up armed checkpoints, established entry and exit control, and proclaimed a sovereign, autonomous nation devoted to the infliction of unremitting terror. They have proclaimed that a progressive society is one which has capitulated to the pressure of red mobs, defunded and dismantled police departments, and allowed murder, robberies and muggings to be committed with impunity. They have proclaimed that a progressive political leadership is one which allows vandals to deface statues, torch cities, scream out red slogans in school classrooms, and eliminate the institutions of civil society considered as a community of rationally flourishing citizens. They have proclaimed that Marxists and blacks built the cities of the world, they own the cities of the world, and they are entitled to loot and burn the cities of the world. They have proclaimed that a progressive society is one which has been founded by red conquerors who have deported the voices of liberal constitutionalism and kept them out with walls, barricades and armed border guards. They have proclaimed that a progressive society is one whose sign at the entrance reads You Are Now Leaving The West and has established a refuge and sanctuary for the misfits and miscreants streaming in from the sewers of the world. They have proclaimed that a progressive society is one whose program of economic development involves extortions and shakedowns of business enterprises conducted by the people's enforcers of gender, race and class justice. Look at the wave of protests and demonstrations sweeping across the world demanding the closure of Western civilization. Look at the size and frequency of the marches and mass agitations demanding the destruction of the world of the Enlightenment, the world of reason and science, Locke and Newton, freedom and progress, and see the faces of savagery and tribalism wearing the uniforms of the reds. These are the uniforms of immigration rights, refugee rights, black power rights, feminist rights, transgender rights, homosexual rights, the rights of plants, animals, minerals and the air, the rights of mass killers and terrorists who blow up homes schools, shops and offices, and the rights of idlers, degenerates, beggars and thieves to be supported by the wealth of honest toilers. Multiplying by the hour and by the minute, the reds have smashed through the gates of civilization and spread into its main streets, central squares and residential districts. Chanting the slogans of identity politics and rallying under the banners of Antifa and Black Lives Matter, they have set fire to the centers and capital cities of the West, made them go up in smoke and flames, and lowered the curtain on life as civilized people have known and understood it: "Tens of thousands of protesters took to the streets across Germany on Sunday, with demands including greener policies, immigration rights, animal rights, racial justice and solidarity with the Black Lives Matter movement. The marches were the latest in a string of demonstrations that have risen in frequency and size since the beginning of the coronavirus pandemic—starting before the killing of George Floyd sparked a global wave of protest against racism and police violence. In the capital, Berlin, organizers estimated that up to 20,000 people formed a human chain from the landmark Brandenburg Gate in the city's center to Kreuzberg, a popular and diverse residential district. The rally followed a protest in support of the Black Lives Matter movement last weekend, when more than 15,000 people gathered at a central square in the German capital. The growing size and frequency of protests in some European cities—up 20% in Berlin this year, according to Berlin state estimates, despite the pandemic—has taken governments aback. The chants and banners demanded urgent policies to tackle climate change and more acceptance of refugees, and one banner urged Bill Gates, the Microsoft founder who now supports public health projects, to develop a vegan vaccine against coronavirus." (In Germany, A Smorgasbord Of Causes Results In One Vast Protest March by Bojan Pancevski). Sharks are among the ocean's deadliest predators and are driven by a single minded drive to kill. The red sharks of the masses and intelligentsia have pulled civilization under the water and are feeding on its remains.

THE RED DONOR CLASS

In the advanced stages of social cancer, every level of society has been invaded and every demographic category has been consumed and no one has been spared save the few who have chosen to stand up against the mob. America in the present day has been stricken by the cancer of leftist ideas and this cancer has created a community of well healed donors to red causes, a community whose wealth reaches into the top most echelons of society, and a community whose aim and mission is the overthrow of the liberal democratic order. The donors to red causes comprise a who's who of America's cultural establishment, ruling corporate circles and billionaire class and with every multimillion dollar donation they make to the enemies of freedom, they reveal just how rotted and hollowed out the soul and institutions of the nation are. Look at the forest of mushrooms felling mighty trees and see the traitors to America in action. Robotized by the reds and with their conscience snatched away, this class of patrons and benefactors is relentless and unbending in its campaign to bankroll totalitarian movements, shower money on people who are filled with hatred, rage and disaffection, and bring about violent world revolution. Leftist causes are awash in cash today and the contributors are full throated in their endorsement of everything which has turned the world of decent, civilized, humane, benevolent, law abiding people upside down. The vanishing voices of Western Enlightenment values look at these money presses for the reds and want to run for the hills and run for their lives because they see a financial power without restraint, without limitation and without moral compunction funding a neoMarxist monster rampaging through homes, schools, offices and neighborhoods and leaving panic, fear and ideological lockstep in its wake. Look at red funder George Soros. See how a multibillionaire spends his fortune on a campaign to subvert capitalism. See how he blames the free market for all the ills of the world. See how he condemns freedom as bourgeois religion of market fundamentalism and advocates a new people's religion of red totalitarian tyranny in its place. See how he condemns individual liberty as harmful to society and advocates a regime of public regulation and intervention in the lives of the people. See how he condemns America as oppressive and exploitative of women and nonwhite by virtue of its system of equal rights and freedoms and opportunities for all without regard to race or gender. See how he promotes the election of red political candidates whose programs consist in opposition to national security, support for the forces of terror, and the overthrow of the United States government. See how he condemns American military actions to smash global terror networks, roll back the rising tide of global Islam, silence the guns of Iran's proxy armies, and rescue the victims of Marxist dictatorships suffering in the jungles and rainforests of the world. See how he condemns the Western liberal counterattack against Marxism and Islam as an unjust, immoral and unwarranted action and a crime against humanity. See how he condemns patriotic Americans who support the institutions of free enterprise and private property as club wielding barbarians ready to crush the skulls of the poor, the downtrodden, the victimized, the marginalized, the indigenous, and the people of color. See how he promotes open immigration, open borders, open sewers, open cesspools, open zoos and the transformation of America into a refuge and sanctuary for the wild animals and moral dregs of the world. See how he advocates one hundred percent taxation levied on the talented and successful classes of society in order to finance one hundred percent social welfare support for the shiftless, purposeless scum of the earth. See how he advocates unconditional amnesty and national cheers of adulation for the every specimen of depravity and corruption who has crashed through the gates and borders of the nation and reproduces like a virus within its homes and neighborhoods. See how he offers aid, comfort and moral support to bombers and arsonists who have declared war on America and justify psychopathic violence as the program of the working class and the command of Allah's faithful. See how he demands that all white Americans kneel down before the world and ask for forgiveness for the crime of "white privilege" which means white existence. See how he advocates the disarmament, surrender and prostration of America before the global juggernaut of Islamic jihad and socialist revolution. See how he advocates human rights for criminals and denies justice for their victims. See how he promotes universal health care entitlement on the backs of the producers and achievers of society. See how he advocates the sacrifice of American freedom, independence and constitutional government on the altars of a global socialist dictatorship under the command of the United Nations. See how he rejects the liberal principle of equal opportunity and advancement on the basis of merit in favor of a regime of racial and gender preferences. See how he advocates the destruction of technological progress and industrial civilization in the name of clean air, clean water, a green new deal, and the rights of plants and animals. Spending millions on the financing of red causes and the recruitment and training of a red army, Soros has declared total war on American liberty and its free marketplace of ideas and opinions. His activists have stormed the ramparts of the City On A Hill: "Even though the free market has made Soros a multibillionaire, he blames capitalism for the world's problems.

"In a *Der Spiegel* interview in 2008, Soros advocates European style socialism for America, 'is exactly what we need now. I am against market fundamentalism. I think this propaganda that government involvement is always bad has been very successful--but also very harmful to our society." Soros's answer to America's problems involves more regulation and more government intervention in the marketplace. Soros pours billions of dollars into the following antiUSA causes:

- Promoting the view that America is institutionally an oppressive nation
- Promoting the election of leftist political candidates throughout the United States
- Opposing virtually all post 9/11 national security measures enacted by US government, particularly the Patriot Act

- Depicting American military actions as unjust, unwarranted, and immoral
- Promoting open borders, mass immigration, and a watering down of current immigration laws
- Promoting a dramatic expansion of social welfare programs funded by ever escalating taxes
- Promoting social welfare benefits and amnesty for illegal aliens
- Defending suspected antiAmerican terrorists and their abetters
- Financing the recruitment and training of future activist leaders of the political Left
- Advocating America's unilateral disarmament and/or a steep reduction in its military spending
- Opposing the death penalty in all circumstances
- Promoting socialized medicine in the United States
- Promoting the tenets of radical environmentalism, whose ultimate goal, as writer Michael Berliner has explained, is 'not clean air and clean water, [but] rather the demolition of technological/industrial civilization'.
- Bringing American foreign policy under the control of the United Nations
- Promoting racial and ethnic preferences in academia and the business world alike

"Indirectly, Soros is one of the main funders of the socialist Green New Deal." (George Soros, Conservapedia). America today is morally unrecognizable. It bears no resemblance to the America of the Boston Tea Party, the Declaration of Independence and the new nation which received the British surrender at Yorktown in 1781. America today is a sick polity whose masses have attacked free institutions with the cancer cells of red revolution. Elected, appointed and cheered on by the masses, America's red donor class has flooded the enemies of liberal democracy with hundreds of millions of dollars. Look at the donors and look at their causes and a portrait of mass, collective treason emerges which has sealed the fate of the nation. The donors include Sony Music, Walmart, Warner Music, Nike, Alphabet/Google, Amazon, Facebook, General Electric, Target, Verizon, United Health, Goldman Sachs, Spotify, Disney, Proctor & Gamble, Cisco, Lego, Microsoft, Starbucks, Intel, McDonald's, Uber, Duke Energy, The Travelers' Companies, Warby Parker, Glosser, PWC Charitable Foundation, Etsy, Yelp Foundation, H & M, Levi's and LuLuLemon. Marching under the banners of diversity, inclusion, social justice, racial justice, freedom rides for the forces of Marxist terror, and bail money for vandals, rioters and looters, America's red donor class has financed the totalitarian transformation of the nation.

THE IMPLOSION PHENOMENON

An implosion is the sudden collapse of a system or organization. An implosion is proceeded by years of negative, destructive development, but at the time of the collapse, critical mass has been achieved, and the collapse is swift, sure and certain. Under constant, unremitting attack by its masses and intelligentsia who turned red over a century ago, America has imploded in the twenty first century, and the crescendo of red corruption which preceded it and the sheer force of the collapse which has occurred, have ensured that the nation as originally organized and understood will never rise again. The timeline of the implosion is comprised of a rush of events succeeding each other faster than the speed of light and forming a whirling, vertiginous blur which has knocked decent, civilized people off their balance and made them pray for a moment's respite, a moment which will never come. This is how nations typically collapse, through implosion, when decades worth of dry brush have

been doused with gasoline and ignited and the resulting flames have consumed in an instant the lives, careers, hopes and dreams of every man, woman and child. The dry brush is the abandonment of reason, which commenced in the early part of the last century, and the resulting rise of faiths and religions exalting mystical collective entities such as genders, races and classes, religions which range from Marxism to black nationalism to radical feminism. The gasoline is the explicit, ear splitting, coast to coast call for violence and revolution by these religions. The spark of ignition is the first wave of violence which hits. The first wave hit soon after the election of Donald Trump, when the American people and their intellectual voices decided that they would not tolerate an antiestablishment figure who sought to disrupt and slow down the radical development of the nation which they held so dear. A minority president who lost the popular vote by almost 2.9 million, receiving 62,979,636 votes to Hillary Clinton's 65,844,610 votes, Donald Trump accomplished just that. Incurring the implacable ire of the red majority which trounced Trump in the last election and which presently runs the nation, Trump eliminated the Affordable Care Act penalty for individuals who do not acquire health insurance. He instituted across the board business deregulation and fundamental tax reform. He established due process protections for university students accused of sexual assault. He mandated that universities enforce the free and open exchange of ideas and protect the expression of politically incorrect views and opinions. He rejected the attack on industrial civilization launched by the environmentalist movement in the name of zero carbon emissions. He appointed federal judges who support the rule of logic and law in the face of leftist antitextualism. He abandoned the Iran antinuclear agreement which allowed Iran to develop nuclear weapons openly after ten years, allowed Iran to develop nuclear weapons immediately in restricted access military sites, allowed Iran to develop ballistic missiles capable of carrying nuclear warheads, and released 100 billion dollars of Iran's frozen assets, allowing it to fund terrorist organizations such as Hezbollah and Hamas and destabilize the Middle East. He came out in fervent support of Israel and sought to protect the cause of freedom in the Middle East, the cause of Israel, from Arab attack and invasion. To achieve this end, he recognized Jerusalem as the capital of Israel, opposed any right of return for Palestinian refugees who would spread antiliberal values like a plague, advocated Israeli sovereignty, the sovereignty of freedom, over the Jordan Valley, and opposed evacuations of Israeli settlements, the settlements of freedom, from the West Bank. He opposed the leftist attack on science expressed in the transgender movement which proclaimed that gender identity is changeable and is not based upon the immutable facts of biology. He issued an executive order that transgender individuals will not be allowed to serve in any capacity in the United States military on the grounds that such individuals suffer from acute psychosis. He has eliminated guidance to public schools on how they should accommodate transgender students. He upheld the constitutional right of freedom of conscience and belief and supported the right of private business establishments not to serve transgender individuals. The reds knew Trump would accomplish all of these things, he said he would accomplish all of them, and accomplish them he did, and since Trump's election, violence against conservatives, libertarians, Republicans and Trump supporters has increased by 300 percent. The masses have declared war against a free society and have sounded the clarion call in thunderous tones. Listen to the voices of America's ruling reds as they advocate violence against the opposition. As they attack the opposition anywhere and everywhere they find it. As they drive the opposition from neighborhoods homes, offices and shops. As they take aggressive action against opposition officials in the government. As they demand an end to respect for the rights of others and commence a campaign of wrecking and vandalism of the opposition. As they charge the opposition on the streets, punch and kick them, and scream that they can do

anything they want to do because they are the people's lords of the earth, whose power transcends the bourgeois principles of reason and surpasses the liberal precepts of morality: "The repeated calls from top Democrats leaders and influential leftists to harass and even attack conservatives and Republicans are having their effect. GOP officials and conservatives have been attacked and threatened anywhere and everywhere. And the attacks aren't just aimed at national figures such as Senator Ted Cruz, who was driven from a restaurant by #MeToo vigilantes during the confirmation hearings of U.S. Supreme Court Justice Brett Kavanaugh. Leftists are attacking state and local GOP officials as well. Meanwhile, unhinged university professors have joined top Democrats in calling for an end to civility. The latest attacks occurred in Minnesota, news reports say. According to the CBS affiliate in Minneapolis, GOP State Representative Sarah Anderson had left home to campaign on October 14 when she spotted a vandal wrecking campaign signs. Reported the affiliate. Parking her car, Anderson confronted the man: 'I said, 'You can't do this!' And he said, 'Yes, I can, I'm an anarchist! I can do whatever I want!' And I said, 'No, you can't, that's not your property.' Wisely, Anderson began video recording, but the violent goon 'backed her into the street, swearing,' the station reported. Then the thug charged. 'Go kill yourself,' he said. Anderson returned to her car and followed the man as he walked away toward a filling station, where she photographed him charging at her again. 'He tried to stop her from leaving, punching her in the arm,' the affiliate reported. 'I said, I'm leaving now. I'm leaving now.' And he was still with his head in my vehicle, just yelling,' Anderson told the station. 'He was irrational, just completely irrational.' The cops have identified a suspect, the Washington Free Beacon reported." (Anti GOP Violence Escalates, Top Democrats Egg On The Goons by Cort Kirkwood). Listen to the journalist Andy Ngo who paints a portrait of a nation in a state of collapse. A nation consumed in insurrection launched by the black masked hoodlums of Antifa and the raging black racists of Black Lives Matter. A nation mobilized to spread panic and fear through the streets. A nation dominated by left wing extremists whose looting, burning, pillaging, rioting, smashing, destruction of the economy, propensity for violence, capability of mayhem, and training in the arts of destabilization and subversion have engulfed the lives of the few civilized people left in the country, overwhelmed the remaining forces of law and order, and lowered the curtain on American civilization: "We are witnessing glimpses of the full insurrection the far left has been working on for decades. Within hours, militant Antifa cells across the country mobilized to aid BLM rioters. The first broken window is the blood in the water for looters to move in. The fires come next. Media, politicians, public—all of us—have underestimated the training, purpose and capability of left wing extremists. Every part of the rioting has a purpose. Fires destroy economy. Riots can overwhelm police and even military. All of it leads to a destabilized state if maintained." (Andy Ngo). Listen to the voices of the national socialists who have painted swastikas across the streets of America and renamed these streets after their movement. Who have exalted the religion of black racism, demanded that the nation bow down before its power and violence, feel deeply its fundamental greatness, and broadcast a fearsome and terrifying message to the world. This is a message that race matters and only race matters, that individuals must be judged on the basis of the color of their skin and not the content of their character, that blacks comprise a master race and have a right to rule over the world, and that social justice demands a regime of discrimination, segregation and extermination of whites: "New York City plans to rename certain streets and paint Black Lives Matter on specific streets in all five boroughs, Mayor Bill de Blasio (D) announced on Tuesday. 'It's time to do something officially representing this city to represent the fundamental power of Black Lives Matter,' de Blasio said during a Tuesday press briefing. 'A proposal put on the table was to name streets in each borough and to paint

the words on the streets of this city in each borough at a crucial location,' he explained. 'What will be clear in the street name and on the streets of our city is that message that now our city must fully, fully, deeply feel—and this nation must as well—that black lives matter,' he said of the decision. The first display will reportedly appear near City Hall." (NYC To Paint 'Black Lives Matter' On Specific Streets In All Five Boroughs by Hannah Bleau). One hundred years after the American people embraced leftist class politics, fifty years after the people embraced the leftist triad of gender, race and class, hours after the people embraced the flaming banners of Antifa and Black Lives Matter, the implosion has come. As liberal ideals and institution lie in wreckage and ruins, a new and dangerous America has arisen to take their place.

AMERICA'S REDS JOIN FORCES

During the Weimar Republic, the Communist Party and the National Socialist Party formed a joint campaign to dissolve the Prussian parliament and overthrow the constitution. They recognized that the Social Democratic Party was their common enemy because of what it championed, liberal capitalist democracy, and that they had to vote together as a single bloc. In the national elections of March 1933, the communists voted for the national socialists in order to destroy freedom in Germany and they thereby facilitated Hitler's rise to power. In the election, 56 percent of the voters supported these two totalitarian parties and together they won 396 seats in the Reichstag or 61 percent of the total. History repeats itself when premises and principles are the same, and in a fearsome and terrifying parallel, America in the twenty first century has plunged into the socialist underbrush which blazed beneath the Weimar Republic and seen two red movements lock arms in eternal comradeship as they confront their common enemy: the nation's liberal democratic system as enshrined in its constitution. In this latest revival of the reds' treason against Weimar Germany, the players are essentially the same while only the specificities have changed. It again features the communists forming an alliance with the fascists, the international socialists supporting the national socialists. This time around, the communists are called Antifa and the national socialists are called Black Lives Matter, and together they have launched a massive, unremitting, round the clock assault against the American state and society, against every free ideal, free institution, free tradition, free aspiration and free citizen they can find, and have cowritten, codirected, coproduced and costarred in the final dark, dismal, somber chapter in the story of a nation which the Founding Fathers once called a Shining City Upon A Hill. Listen to the voices of world's premier Marxist movement in its war against the existing liberal democratic order. It has proclaimed that a progressive society is an international movement of Marxist-Leninists which conducts campaigns of terror in the name of antiracist action. It has proclaimed that a progressive society is an intolerant hate community which is festooned with quotations from Karl Marx and promotes red totalitarian tyranny in the name of democratic socialism. It has proclaimed that a progressive society is a Trump resistance movement, a global megaphone for the promotion of far left ideology, and a satanic church whose congregants worship at the altars of Stalin and the Soviet Union. It has proclaimed that a progressive society is one which has no borders or walls to keep out human debris and is a refuge and sanctuary for the criminal underground who wear the uniforms of red murder and red revolution. It has proclaimed that a progressive society is one which forces individuals to purchase health care for themselves and to pay for the health care of others and enforces a mandate of universal enslavement in the name of welfare entitlement. It has proclaimed that a progressive society is one which has sacrificed individual rights, liberal enlightenment and capitalist opportunity for all upon the altars of the people's socialist progress. It has proclaimed that the voices of freedom and dignity are the voices of capitalist exploiters and oppressors and must be vilified, slandered, silenced and beaten to a bloody pulp. It has proclaimed that a progressive government is a proudly unconstitutional, terrorist government whose people's brigades have spread violent disturbances far and wide and outlawed peace and order forever. They have proclaimed that a progressive society is one which has legalized criminal behavior and denied due process rights to those who spread socially dangerous ideas promoting individual flourishing and the pursuit of private success and happiness. It has proclaimed that individuals who support Donald Trump and the cause of conservative, constitutional, libertarian government which Trump champions are fascists and national socialists and must be targeted, intimidated and harassed to the ends of the earth. It has proclaimed that a progressive society is one whose establishment marches under the banners of the radical left and sends out its bullies and thugs to disrupt rallies promoting freedom of speech. It has proclaimed that rational intelligence is a liberal, bourgeois construct and the highest form of political debate, communication and argumentation consists in throwing rocks, bricks, bottles and cement filled soda cans at conservatives and libertarians who oppose the Black Bloc mobs of Marxist totalitarians, in assaulting them with pepper spray and bike locks, in punching and clubbing them until they are severely wounded or dead, and in committing acts of vandalism against their homes, schools and offices. Look at the faces of the far left and see their fusillades of Marxist terror. See their rampaging, their plundering, their acts of arson, their attacks on law and order, and their deliberate and unprovoked destruction of the people and places around them. See their campaign of crime and violence planned and coordinated from every corner of the nation. See their gangs and mobs of frenzied, vicious radicals traveling from state to state and from city to city handing out grenades, gasoline cans and matches to the psychopaths and delinquents who come out to greet them. See their agitators and propagandists organize the failures, the incompetents, the frustrated and the discontented classes of society and whip them up to a fever pitch of vengeance and cruelty. See a cancer spreading across the nation, the sights and sounds of a relentless, unstoppable moral malignancy, brought on by the sinister, shadowy forms of Antifa: "But there is little to suggest that these claims are anything other than attempts to divert attention away from the very solid evidence that the far left, Marxist-anarchist Antifa movement is heavily involved in the rioting. As Fox News has reported: 'Antifa sent the word out far and wide to burn buildings, loot stores, destroy cars and attack law enforcement officers.' And Antifa members--who often travel from far flung locations to meet up with their allies in sites that have been preselected for rioting--have coordinated their violent efforts in a very organized way. US Attorney General William Barr alluded to this when he stated: 'Groups of outside radicals and agitators are exploiting the situation to pursue their own separate and violent agenda. In many places, it appears the violence is planned, organized, and driven by anarchic left extremist group—far left extremist groups using Antifa like tactics, many of whom travel from outside the state to promote the violence.' US National Security Adviser Robert O'Brien concurs that the violence 'is being driven by Antifa,' whose constituent groups 'are organized and use Molotov cocktails and fireworks and gas to burn down our cities.' " (The Marxist-Anarchist Face of the Riots, Front Page magazine). Look at the faces of the Hitlerites of today and see their program of apartheid. See how they have outraged the conscience of decent, civilized people by their policy of racial exclusion. See how they exalt a new Aryan race called people of color and call for a Final Solution against white people. See how they have fomented a race war whose goal is a regime of legalized segregation, legalized discrimination and legalized murder of whites. See how they have smashed and burned the institutions of liberal equality and equal protection under the law

and constructed in their place an African jungle of thatched huts and animal skin tents surrounded by a fence which reads Whites Not Welcome. See the fearsome spread of a pestilence across America, street by street, town by town, city by city, chapter by chapter, holding aloft the blazing swastikas of racial supremacy, a pestilence called Black Lives Matter: "Nashville Public Library officials have told Nashville's chapter of Black Lives Matter that meetings that welcome only people of color can't take place inside the city's libraries. That decision has outraged members of Black Lives Matter, who say the library canceled all future meetings the group had organized for later this month. But library officials say they're simply enforcing a library policy that says all meetings at their facilities must be open to the general public and news media. 'The library didn't cancel anyone's meeting,' said library spokeswoman Emily Waltenbaugh, referring to a Black Lives Matter meeting for Saturday morning that the organization has now rescheduled for a church instead. 'We're a library,' she said. 'We're taxpayer funded. We have to be open to anyone anytime.' For the past few months, Black Lives Matter in Nashville has held its chapter meetings at the North Branch Library in North Nashville. According to Joshua Crutchfield, an organizer of the Nashville chapter of Black Lives Matter, the group has a rule: Only black people as well as nonblack people of color are allowed to attend the gatherings. That means white people are excluded from attending." (Black Lives Matter Color Only Rule Runs Afoul Of Nashville Library by Joey Garrison). In 1921, the Soviet Union's Communist International formed the Antifaschistische Aktion in Germany to attack the supporters of liberal democracy. They were joined in their attacks by the National Socialist Party. Recognizing their affinity in their politics of collectivism, statism and genocide against targeted groups, these two movements worked together to bring down the Weimar Republic. In America in the twenty first century, the wheel of history has moved full circle and the Weimar alliance between the Marxists and the national socialists has been reborn. Appearing now as Antifa and Black Lives Matter, the Weimar players have coordinated their campaigns, placed their red stars and swastikas side by side on the field of battle, and stormed the ramparts of American civilization.

ATTORNEY GENERAL PALMER

The power of sight has been granted to few people in the world. Most people see reality through the distorting prisms of their own wishes, desires, passions and prejudices. The attorney general of the United States from March 1919 to March 1921, Mitchell Palmer was one rare soul who was able to see a certain reality in all its ugliness, monstrousness and unmitigated evil, and when he saw it, he did not waver or flinch, and when he saw it, he was determined to do something about it, and to expunge it from every corner of the nation. Attorney General Palmer saw the reality of a red menace closing in on America, attacking its free people and its free institutions, and he launched a massive counterattack. He saw communist labor agitators lead general strikes across the nation. He saw followers of the communist Luigi Galleani, advocate of "propaganda by the deed", sending out dozens of letter bombs to government officials, law enforcement personnel and business leaders. He saw victims of these bombings suffer severe injuries, including having their hands blown off, and people killed as a result of them. One letter bomb reached his own home and had been sent to kill him and his family. Accompanying each letter bomb was a flyer declaring war on capitalism in the name of communist revolution. He saw communists lead a police strike in Boston and saw the city descend into nights of anarchy and violence. In August 1919, he appointed J. Edgar Hoover to lead a new division of the Justice Department's Bureau of Investigation, called the General Intelligence Division, whose aim was to investigate the programs of communist groups and identify their members. In November 1919, on the second anniversary of the communist revolution in Russia, he ordered agents of the Bureau of Investigation together with local law enforcement agencies to execute a series of raids against the Union of Russian workers in twelve cities across the nation. As a result of the raids, Palmer amassed the names of 60,000 communists and arrested 250. In January 1920, Palmer ordered another series of raids, this time covering thirty cities and towns in twenty three states, and these resulted in the arrests of 3,000 communists. In total, the raids resulted in the deportation of 556 communists. Communist sympathizers in and out of government, sympathizers such as Assistant Secretary of Labor Louis Post, and members of the American Civil Liberties Union who did not recognize the constitutional basis of property rights or economic freedom, criticized Palmer's raids on the grounds that many of the arrests were made without warrants. In point of fact, Palmer did not need warrants to arrest individuals who had been caught in or just after an act of wrongdoing. Just as law enforcement authorities do not require a warrant to arrest an individual who is in the process of committing or who has just committed a robbery or a murder, so they do not require a warrant to arrest an individual who is in the process of committing an act of revolution or insurrection with the use of force and violence. The communists apprehended by Palmer had been caught red handed, in flagrante delicto, and were thus detainable without a warrant. Listen to Palmer who ordered the apprehension of individuals in the very act of executing their plan of violent overthrow of American liberal democracy: "The government should encourage free political thinking and political action, but it certainly has the right for its own preservation to discourage and prevent the use of force and violence to accomplish that which ought to be accomplished, if at all, by parliamentary or political methods." (Palmer Upholds Red Repression, The New York Times, January 24, 1920). Listen to Palmer who saw the reality of communism as few people have seen it. Who saw the true face of communist moral filth and justification of rank criminality. Who saw the communist intellectual poison which promotes murder and robbery in the name of the liberation of the working class. Who saw alien assassins invade the shores of America, smash through the homes and offices of its citizens, and spread a fearsome and terrifying creed of round the clock revolution and mass destruction: "Robbery, not war, is the ideal of communism. This has been demonstrated in Russia, Germany, and in America. As a foe, the anarchist is fearless of his own life, for his creed is a fanaticism that admits no respect of any other creed. Obviously it is the creed of any criminal mind, which reasons always from motives impossible to clean thought. Crime is the degenerate factor in society. Upon these two basic certainties, first that the reds were criminal aliens, and secondly that the American government must prevent crime, it was decided that there could be no nice distinctions drawn between the theoretical ideals of the radicals and their actual violations of our national laws. An assassin may have brilliant intellectuality, he maybe able to excuse his murder or robbery with fine oratory, but any theory which excuses crime is not wanted in America. This is no place for the criminal to flourish, nor will he do so, so long as the rights of common citizenship can be exerted to prevent him." (The Case Against The Reds by A. Mitchell Palmer). Listen to Palmer who condemns the communist commissars who morally and physically destroyed Russia and placed America next in their sights. Who condemns the communist refuse and rejects of society who streamed down the sewage canals of the world and flooded into the homes, schools and streets of the nation. Who condemns communist murderers, robbers, demagogues and deceivers who sit on thrones marked Class Envy and Class Vengeance and rule the scum and lowlifes in the basements of civilization. Who condemns the Kremlin's reign of violence and terror and seeks to deport its agents and envoys from America: "By stealing, murder, and lies, Bolshevism has looted Russia not only of its material strength, but

of its moral force. A small clique of outcasts from the East Side of New York has attempted this, with what success we all know. Because a disreputable alien—Leon Bronstein, the man who now calls himself Trotsky—can inaugurate a reign of terror from his throne room in the Kremlin; because this lowest of all types known to New York can sleep in the Tsar's bed, while hundreds of thousands in Russia are without food or shelter; should Americans be swayed by such doctrines? Such a question, it would seem, should receive butone answer from America." (The Case Against The Reds by A. Mitchell Palmer). Listen to Palmer who condemns the forces of red revolution sweeping across the nation. Who saw a nation in jeopardy, threatened by the red wagon of communist mob politics, and was determined to set it right. Who confronted the treacherous tentacles of the communist monster, reaching out from the Moscow gang commanded by Lenin and Trotsky, spreading out into the world under the name of the Communist International, and spreading out into the arsenal of the free world under the names of the Communist Labor Party and the Communist Party of America. Who ensured that this unparalleled danger would not be allowed to imprison the nation behind proletarian watchtowers and barbed wire fences, and take away the nation's heart and soul, and remove all that makes America to be America, and deprive the American people of their freedom of thought, speech, enterprise or movement: "It as always been plain to me that when American citizens unite upon any national issue, they are generally right, but it is sometimes difficult to make the issue clear to them. If the Department of Justice could succeed in attracting the attention of our optimistic citizens to the issue of internal revolution in this country, we felt sure there would be no revolution. The government was in jeopardy. My private information of what was being done by the organization known as the Communist Party of America, with headquarters in Chicago, of what was being done by the Communist International under their manifesto planned at Moscow last March by Trotsky, Lenin, and others, addressed 'To the Proletariat of All Countries,' of what strides the Communist Labor Party was making, removed all doubt. In this conclusion we did not ignore the definite standards of personal liberty, of free speech, which is the very temperament and heart of the people. The evidence was examined with the utmost care, with a personal leaning toward freedom of thought and word on all questions ." (The Case Against The Reds by A. Mitchell Palmer). In December 1919, the Soviet Ark steamed out of New York Harbor carrying a human plague. Rounded up by Mitchell Palmer, this was a plague of red conspiracy, agitation, incitement, revolution and destruction and its leading personages were dedicated deputies in the service of Lenin and Trotsky, and included Emma Goldman, Ethel Bernstein, Peter Bianki and Alexander Berkman. Greeted in Russia with wild cheers resounding with the Russian national anthem, these insects and ticks of class hatred and class terror had been swept out of America by the unremitting efforts of its fiftieth attorney general.

DAVID AND GOLIATH

In the story of David and Goliath, the latter was a Philistine giant who was slain by a young David in a single combat. For a half a century, America had a David who did battle with a Goliath and kept the nation safe from its mission of destruction. This David was J. Edgar Hoover and this Goliath was the international communist movement and conspiracy and from the early part of the twentieth century to the latter part, Hoover was the nation's preeminent hero in its struggle to defeat the reds. Hoover's career began in 1919, when he became head of the Bureau of Investigation's General Intelligence Division, whose goal was to monitor and disrupt the work of domestic communists. During this time, Hoover's major assignment was to carry out the Palmer Raids. Conducted under the leadership of Attorney-

General Mitchell Palmer, the Palmer Raids were a response to a communist onslaught which saw labor strikes, race riots, arson attacks and bombings launched from coast to coast. The Palmer Raids resulted in the arrest of 3,000 communists and the deportation of over 500 and were applauded by patriotic, law abiding Americans from every walk of life. In 1921, Hoover was appointed deputy director of the Bureau of Investigation, and in 1924, he was appointed director. Hoover established a premier, world class law enforcement apparatus, staffed by the highest qualified personnel and equipped with a centralized fingerprint file, a national crime laboratory, a national crime statistics center, and a National Police Academy, and placed it in the service of investigating the premier threat posed against the West: the community of communist sympathizers, supporters, subversives and spies active in the government and the private sector. Listen to Hoover who condemns the communist program of destruction aimed at the Western liberal, constitutional order embodied in the American form of government. Who condemns the communist advance against all things which promote human flourishing and a human way of life: freedom of thought, freedom of speech, freedom of enterprise, the right to private property and the right of the people to choose their leaders. Who condemns in the strongest moral terms the party of Marxism and Leninism, the party of the Soviet Union, the party of world revolution and the party which seeks to create a Soviet of the United States, and sweep away the customs and institutions established by free, humane, benevolent, civilized people. Who condemns the imposition of socialist force, brutality and totalitarian regimentation in the name of the historic mission and struggles of the working class. Who condemns the communist fever, frenzy and rabid fanaticism which ignited a marsh fire from the decaying matter of corrupted minds, a conflagration called the dictatorship of the proletariat, and fanned, fueled and stirred it up across the world. Who condemns the juggernaut of communist imperialism whose religion of violence spread to the four corners of the earth and suppressed the cries of liberty beneath an avalanche of mob politics and mass agitation. Who condemns the forces of red reaction which seek to turn back the clock of history to the year zero when individual freedom was stomped to death in savage jungles ruled by the families, communities, cultures and blood ties of the collective. Who condemns the movement of red educators, red indoctrinators, red schools, red parties, red caucuses, red factions, red agents, red terrorists and red insurrectionists in their sinister plans and designs to make blood flow in the streets and bring forth the doom of the West: "The communist movement in the Unites States began to manifest itself in 1919. Since then it has changed its name and its party line whenever expedient and tactical. But always it comes back to fundamentals and bills itself as the party of 'Marxism-Leninism.' As such, it stands for the destruction of our American form of government; it stands for the destruction of American Democracy; it stands for the destruction of free enterprise; and it stands for the creation of a 'Soviet of the United States' and ultimate world revolution. The preamble of their latest constitution of the Communist Party of the United States, is filled with Marxian double talk, proclaims that the party 'educates the working class, in the course of its day to day struggles, for its historic mission, and the establishment of socialism.' The phrase 'historic mission' has a sinister meaning. To the uninformed person it bespeaks tradition, but to the communist, using his own words, it is: 'achieving the dictatorship of the proletariat; to throw off the yoke of imperialism and establish the proletarian dictatorship; to raise these revolutionary forces to the surface and hurl them like a devastating avalanche upon the united forces of bourgeois reaction, frenzied at the presentiment of their rapidly approaching doom.' In the recent years, the communists have been very cautious about using such phrases as 'force and violence;' nevertheless, it is the subject of much discussion in the schools and in party caucuses where they readily admit that the only way in which they can defeat the present ruling class is by world revolution.

The communist, once he is fully trained and indoctrinated, realizes that he can create his order in the United States only by 'bloody revolution.' " (Speech Before The House Committee On UnAmerican Activities by J. Edgar Hoover, March 26, 1947). In 1956, Hoover initiated a secret counterintelligence program to surveil, infiltrate, expose, discredit, misdirect, disrupt and neutralize communist and other leftist organizations dedicated to the overthrow of liberal democracy in America. The program sought to protect national security, prevent nationwide violence, and maintain the social and political order of America predicated upon the rights, freedoms and dignity of the individual. The targets of COINTELPRO comprised a rainbow spectrum and who's who of the nation's subversive activists and included the following: feminists; members of the Black Panther Party; antiVietnam War organizers; environmentalists; animal rights activists; the Nation of Islam; the American Indian Movement; the Communist Party USA; Antioch College, the vanguard of the new left; the Socialist Workers Party; the Young Socialist Alliance; Students for a Democratic Society; the Student Nonviolent Coordinating Committee; the Southern Christian Leadership Conference; the communist front National Lawyers' Guild; and the Young Patriots Organization. Listen to Hoover who condemns the forces of black nationalism, black militancy, black revolution, black violence and black terror in their war against American liberal government and the rule of law. Who condemns the growth, respectability and nationwide acceptance of red coalitions ranged against constitutional order and capitalist freedom. Who condemns the rabble rousers, firebrands, proselytisers and agitators who advocate the extermination of white people in the name of black civil rights and who don the mantle of messiah of the victimized and the oppressed: "1. Prevent the COALITION of militant black nationalist groups. In unity there is strength; a truism that is no less valid for all its triteness. An effective coalition of black nationalist groups might be the first step toward a real Mau Mau in America, the beginning of a true black revolution. 2. Prevent the RISE OF A MESSIAH who could unify, and electrify, the militant black nationalist movement. 3. Prevent VIOLENCE on the part of black nationalist groups. This is of primary importance, and is, of course, a goal of our investigative activity; it should also be a goal of the Counterintelligence Program to pinpoint potential troublemakers and neutralize them before they exercise their potential for violence. 4. Prevent militant black nationalist groups and leaders from gaining RESPECTABILITY, by discrediting them to three separate segments of the community. 5. A final goal should be to prevent the long range GROWTH of militant black organizations, especially among youth. Specific tactics to prevent these groups from converting young people must be developed." (The FBI Sets Goals For COINTELPRO by J. Edgar Hoover). The story of the Federal Bureau of Investigation is the story of a man who transformed the bureau into a modern, national organization whose professionalism, scientific crime fighting and world famous G man brand kept the communist menace at bay and defeated red formations of all stripes and varieties, their plans of sabotage and their blueprints of destruction. The FBI headquarters in Washington DC i named the J. Edgar Hoover Building in honor of the courage, achievements and noble qualities of a red hunter who commanded America's internal security, counterintelligence and federal law enforcement antired force. Under the directorship of J. Edgar Hoover, America's domestic intelligence and security service, with field offices located in every major city in the nation, was the world's premier police investigator of the red enemies of civilization.

RED CELLS SPREAD ACROSS THE NATION

Cancer is an insidious disease which spreads and attacks an organism from multiple

locations throughout the body. After a development lasting years, cancer finally ravages the organism in a mighty onslaught coming from all directions. America has in the present day been stricken by a social cancer whose cells are active in every major city and have engulfed the nation's body and soul and marked it for death. These cells are the reds, and they have multiplied uncontrollably, invaded every home, office, street and neighborhood in the land, and transformed a constitutional republic into a rotting, bankrupt structure which has fallen and collapsed into a barren wasteland of bloody violence. The reds are on the march in a coast to coast, coordinated campaign to foment civil war and take down the nation. They spring out of shadows in small groups. Their faces are covered and they are dressed in black. They carry shields. They carry bottles of milk to protect themselves against tear gas and pepper spray. They wear helmets, knee pads and gas masks. They head for the front lines and commence their assault against America. In their campaign, they torch businesses, smash windows, destroy automobiles, plunder shops, vandalize offices, organize riots, ravage cities, and unleash panic and fear upon the streets. They are the cells of red terror, and they have converged upon the nation in the wake of the George Floyd killing to lower the curtain on America's liberal order, and to bury the lives and careers of decent, law abiding citizens beneath the smoldering rubble of national ruination. Conducted in broad daylight and conducted night after night, the violence which has convulsed the nation has been planned and carried out by Antifa and Black Lives Matter, the leaders of the red cancerous movement to destroy America. With the sympathy and encouragement of the nation's masses and intelligentsia, these organizations have moved in on the streets to pursue their violent, socialist agenda, and through the nonresistance and active support they have encountered from the people and their leaders, have shown the world just how sick and dying America really is. As the flames of destruction leap ever higher into the skies and spread ever farther and wider across the country, the program and manifesto of these red cancer cells has become apparent to every man, women and child and been scorched forever in the nation's psyche. Rejecting everything America has traditionally stood for and the sacred ideals on which it was founded, the fearsome philosophy of this red cancer on society has proclaimed that the order of liberal democracy is the order of Hitler and Mussolini and must be smashed by a people's antiracist action front. It has proclaimed that capitalism is a system of German national socialism and white supremacy and those who defend it must be deprived of all public platforms to speak and must be hounded out of the precincts of society. It has proclaimed that capitalism is a system of racism, sexism, homophobia and hatred of the poor and must be swept away by a socially and politically leftist totalitarian tyranny. It has proclaimed that a progressive society is one which organizes round the clock red agitation and propaganda campaigns, builds community coalitions among the classes of misfits, the maladjusted and the emotionally disturbed, monitors the voices of reason and law and forces venues to cancel their speeches, holds nationwide training sessions on the art of aggressive violence, and inculcates the citizenry in the moral necessity to physically confront the advocates of liberal peace and beat them to a bloody pulp. It has proclaimed that a progressive society is one which marches under the banners of communist supremacy, wears the black hoods of the Marxist klan, has taken over every public forum and channel of mass communication, and cut down the voices of liberal protest and dissent in cold blood. It has proclaimed that a progressive society is one which has hunted down and identified the supporters of free institutions wherever they are, given information on their addresses, families, friends and employers to the people's political security squads, and advocated the use of violence and intimidation against them as a necessary purgative and cleansing agent. It has proclaimed that a progressive society is one which justifies acts of aggression as acts of the people's self defense, and arms the people's red supremacists of social justice with

guns and clubs, and orders them to prevent the defenders of liberty from spreading their views. It has proclaimed that a progressive society is one which is unapologetic about its use of force and violence to suppress freedom of speech and proudly advertises its program of extermination against the enemies of socialism. It has proclaimed that a progressive political movement is one which exhorts red activists to go out onto the streets and clash with the police and storm the ramparts of law and order. It has proclaimed that a progressive society is one which does not allow opponents of socialists to air their views and seeks to crush them with violence and sweep them into a black hole of media nonexistence. It has proclaimed that a progressive political movement is one whose members are dressed in black, wear face masks, set fire to buildings, beat up Trump supporters, throw objects at police, force conservative commentators to cancel their speeches, and blast the rifles of political correctness against the voices of liberal dissent. It has proclaimed that a progressive society is a global network of black power communities which seek to disenfranchise and disempower every white person on the planet. It has proclaimed that a progressive society is one which has granted blacks total economic and political power and seeks to create a world free of whites. It has proclaimed that a progressive society is one whose guiding religion is hatred of whites and recognition of the moral superiority of primitive African cultures. It has proclaimed that a progressive political movement is one which resounds with a call to action for state sanctioned violence against whites and the exclusion of whites from civil society. It has proclaimed that the highest form of justice is social justice, because groups and not individuals are the primary existents, and social justice demands a people's program of rampant, deliberate violence against whites, because black lives matter and only black lives matter. It has proclaimed that a progressive political movement is one which has taken over capitals, taken to the streets, taken down cities, organized freedom rides jangling with chains of subjugation for whites, and become a home and sanctuary for psychopathic black racists throughout the world. The red cancer against America is a sickness in its terminal stages of development. The reds coordinate pop up riots in cities throughout the nation and bail each other out of jail. The reds operate communications networks spanning the nation to plan and execute their attacks. The reds bus each other across state lines to organize an insurrection. Red field commanders using military grade communication devices direct the front line action. Threats, intimidation, instigation, arson, looting, and psychopathic violence justified as a political program: such are the symptoms of the red cancer which has overrun the nation. Listen to the voices of prominent Americans who sanction and support the terror. The Democratic Party of Fairfax, Virginia states: "Riots are an integral part of this country's march towards progress." Colin Kapernick states: "The cries for peace will rain down, and when they do, they will land on deaf ears." Carly Fiorina states: "It's white America that now must see the truth, speak the truth and act on the truth." Kay Cole James states: "How many times will protests have to occur?" Nikki Haley states: "Tonight, I turned on the news and am heartbroken. It's important to understand that the death of George Floyd was personal and painful for many. In order to heal, it needs to be personal and painful for everyone." Look at the prominent Americans who have given their financial support, packaged obscenely as a Freedom Fund, to the red rampage and campaign of plunder across the nation. Look at this list of stars, this who's who of Hollywood treason: "Actors Steve Carell and Seth Rogen are among the Hollywood celebrities donating money to the Minnesota Freedom Fund, a nonprofit group raising money used to bail out protesters in Minneapolis as rioters and looters flood the streets in the wake of George Floyd's police involved death. The list of stars donating to the Minnesota Freedom Fund reads like a who's who of monied Hollywood elites—Don Cheadle, Olivia Wilde, Patton Oswalt, Nick Kroll, Janelle Monae, Ben Schwartz, and actress Beanie Feldstein." (Steve Carell, Seth Rogen Among Celebs

Donating Bail Money for Minneapolis Protesters by Jerome Hudson). These are the faces and voices of national chaos, destruction, suicide and collapse. Aided, abetted, sanctioned and supported by the American people and the American establishment, an uncontrolled division of malignant red cells has closed the story of America.

THE JOURNEY OF CHARLES LINDBERGH

On May 19, 1927, pilot Charles Lindbergh tries to sleep in a hotel room near Roosevelt Field. His friend guards his room from reporters. He is unable to sleep but has a mighty vision of the future which awaits him, a vision of a stupendous journey through air and space and through the treacherous waters of political incorrectness, a journey which would make him one of the most unusual, most inspiring and most victimized heroes in American history. The vision commences on May 20, when Lindbergh takes off in *The Spirit Of Saint* Louis from Roosevelt Field. He flies northeast along the coast and flies over Nova Scotia and Newfoundland. He flies over the Atlantic Ocean using only a magnetic compass and an airspeed indicator. He flies over Ireland. Crossing the Irish Coast, he heads toward Paris. Landing at Le Bourget Field after thirty three and a half hours of flight, he is greeted by a frenzied, ecstatic crowd of hundreds of thousands. He is the first person to fly solo across the Atlantic Ocean. After his triumphant return to St Louis in June, after ticker tape parades attended by thousands across the nation in his honor, after being awarded the Medal of Honor by an act of Congress, the vision jumps to the year 1939. This is the year when Lindbergh hears the call of conscience and opposes America's intervention in the war in Europe, the year when the adulation of the nation disappears, and the year when Lindbergh becomes the object of national calumny and vilification. His vision next jumps to the year 1941, when he joins the America First Committee, an organization which opposes American entry into World War II, and the hate campaign against him intensifies. Listen to Lindbergh who champions the cause of freedom and civilization against the international communist movement and conspiracy. Who unfurls the banner of human liberty and the rule of law as he confronts a totalitarian beast called Russia. Who crusades against the forces of aggression emanating like wildfire from the steppes of Asia and demands that the tyranny of the reds be crushed forever. Who beholds a Marxist empire spreading its fearsome tentacles into Europe, enslaving the people of Finland, befriending and trading with the Devil, peddling class hatred and class war, greedy beyond greed for the riches of the West, and demands that the Allies' obscene alliance with the Soviets ended immediately: "First, we were subjected to a fear campaign, and told that America would be invaded if we didn't defend England. Then we were subjected to a greed campaign, and told that Germany would get some of our foreign trade if we didn't protect the British Empire. Now we are subjected to a hate campaign, and told that Germany may not be crushed if we don't enter the war ourselves. And in between, our ideals are appealed to. We are told that we must go to war to help the British Empire and the Soviet Union defend democracy and liberty and nonaggression. We democratic people are apparently considered such imbeciles that we can be told one year that France and Finland represent everything we would be willing to die for; and told the next year that France and Finland have changed and represent everything we should be willing to die against. One year Russia is a totalitarian monster, and the next year she is a democratic friend. Before we send American soldiers to fight for Soviet Russia, let us inquire why a nation as brave and as respected as Finland, a nation that has fought for freedom and democracy with the utmost courage, let us inquire why such a nation has been fighting on the other side." (What Do We Mean by Democracy Freedom? by Charles Lindbergh). Listen to Lindbergh who advocates a global crusade against Stalin's Soviet Russia on behalf of the Western liberal order. Who demands that the citizens of the free world rise up to defeat a social, political and cultural system which declared war against human aspirations, human ideals, human nature and human dignity and relegated the individual to the status of a passive, rightless cog in the machinery of the party, the class, the people and the state, a social, cultural and political system called communism. Who recognizes that for free people seeking to preserve their freedom and their human way of life, a war against communism is both inevitable and desirable, and is a war which free people have to win under all circumstances and at all costs. Who beholds a monster raging from the depths clothed in Asiatic garb and breathing the slogans of Marx, a large, ugly, inhuman, frightening form which the people of Europe and America are duty bound to slay and to scatter to the winds: "Rather, he feared Joseph Stalin's Soviet Union, which had, in Lindbergh's opinion, a culture and political system which would, if given the chance, radically alter Western civilization. He thought that war with the Soviets was inevitable, and his greatest hope lay in the possibility that a war would be confined to fighting between Hitler and Stalin. It seemed probable that Germany would be victorious in such a conflict; and by that time France and England would be stronger. "Under any circumstances, I believed that a victory by Germany's European people would be preferable to one by Russia's semiAsiatic Soviet Union. Hitler would not live forever, and I felt sure the Germans would eventually moderate the excesses of his Nazi regime.' " (Developing For Peace: An Analysis Of Charles A. Lindbergh's Views On American Foreign Policy by Adam Jantunen). Listen to Lindbergh who decries the advance of Soviet imperialism and the march of the red menace across the face of the earth. Who recognizes that no political system is more evil and criminal than communism, a system which deprives human life of all meaning and existence, and sacrifices the rights, freedoms and dignity of the individual upon the altars of proletarian revolution and social responsibility. Who demands that America make common cause with Germany, improve relations with the field marshals of fascism, as a necessary expedient to defeat the scourge of Marxist totalitarianism and make the world safe from this unique threat to civilization. Who recognizes that Stalin is more nefarious than Hitler, that communism is more murderous than fascism, and that the peace and security of the free world depend upon America making a temporary, pragmatic alliance with Hitler to smash the communist slave empire. Who recognizes that the Third Reich is a formidable bulwark and dagger against communism and should be utilized by America as such, and who is subsequently subjected to endless volleys of vituperation and abuse for this recognition: "Lindbergh's second suggested way of preventing Germany from going to war with America was for the US to improve its diplomatic relations with the Third Reich. Such a move would not only would prevent Germany and America from fighting, but it would also limit Soviet expansion. In October 1938, he readily accepted an invitation from U.S. Ambassador to Germany Hugh Wilson to a dinner party at the American embassy, at which Lindbergh and Field Marshal Herman Goering were to be the guests of honor. Wilson hosted the dinner in an attempt to improve American-German relations, a turn of events which seemed possible after the Munich Conference two weeks earlier, at which France and Britain opted for a policy of appeasement. At the dinner, without the permission of Wilson, Goering presented Lindbergh with a medal, on behalf of Adolf Hitler. Though Lindbergh was viciously condemned in later years for accepting the award, Wayne Cole, in Charles A. Lindbergh And The Battle Against American Intervention in World War II, argues that even if the Americans had advance notice about the medal presentation: 'They probably would not have changed their conduct significantly. To have refused the medal in that setting would have embarrassed America's ambassador, offended [Goering] and worsened German-American

relations at a moment when they showed a possibility of improvement.' " (Developing For Peace: An Analysis Of Charles A. Lindbergh's Views On American Foreign Policy by Adam Jantunen). Lindbergh's vision next jumps to the year 1974, when he lies on his deathbed in seclusion on the island of Maui, far away from his native land which had rejected him. He reflects upon a career during which his epoch making airplane landed safely in Paris in 1927, while his reputation soon thereafter went down in flames over his politically incorrect positions on communism. Defying the passions of the masses and intelligentsia which worshiped the communist ideal of universal enslavement to a leviathan called the state, Lindbergh advocated a global war against the Soviet Union and its worldwide web of satellites, conspirators and coreligionists, a war which would involve Germany in a temporary alliance. For this position, he paid the ultimate price of relentless national censure and unremitting slander of his character. His vision now ends, he steps out of his reverie, and he prepares himself for the next day when his plane will take off. When he boards the Spirit Of St Louis, this twenty five year old air mail and National Guard pilot knows the future which awaits him. America will gain, exalt and then defeat and destroy a hero, a victim of the red plague which will bring down the West.

CITIZEN HEARST

In a house in Beverly Hills, California in 1951, the greatest news media magnate in the world lies on his deathbed. As the nurse enshrouds his body and the Grim Reaper enters to take him away, his friends and associates gather round to reminisce on a life lived and a journey undertaken which was larger and greater than life itself. The name of the deceased was William Randolph Hearst and his friends exchanged stories and reflections on a man whose media empire reached across the nation and educated an audience from New York to Boston to Chicago to Los Angeles to San Francisco. Words and images from Hearst's life passed through their minds and told the story of a man who defined the quality of moral integrity and set a standard of principled business management which few business practitioners have ever reached. This was the story of a man who was willing to advance any crusade, however unpopular, and to confront any individual, however powerful, in the name of defending truth and justice, and was ready to apply all the resources at his command to defeat the enemies of freedom and civilization, no matter what the professional or personal consequences might be. This was the story of a man who created and maintained a news media empire dedicated to the presentation of unbiased reporting, unfiltered information, unscreened facts and the defense of liberal, enlightenment values. This was the story of a man who championed the Spanish-American War to free Cuba from the yoke of Spanish imperialism. His newspapers were the voice of decent, civilized Americans and compelled President William McKinley and Congress to declare war against Spain in 1898. Recognizing the right of the Cuban people to throw off the shackles of a foreign invader, he celebrated the right of a free press and a free people to rule, regulate and reform the world. This was the story of a man who advocated the expansion of freedom throughout the Western hemisphere through the annexation of Hawaii, the construction of an interoceanic canal through Panama or Nicaragua, the acquisition of strategic bases in the Caribbean, the maintenance of a world class navy, and the establishment of national military universities at West Point and Annapolis to train the soldiers of liberty and stock the arsenals of Western civilization. He achieved all these objectives by means of Congressional legislation. This was the story of a man who crusaded under the banners of modern civilization, the banners of humane culture, constitutional democracy, and individual liberty under the rule of law, and recognized the right to impose this civilization upon primitive, retrograde societies in whose souls coursed the religions and institutions of collectivism and brute force. Who condemned friendship and fraternization with barbarian cultures as unwarranted, unwise and ungrounded in the principles of justice and advocated the annihilation of these pockmarks and blights upon the human race. Who advocated the establishment of a global imperialist movement embodying the American ideals of liberal governance and dedicated to the acquisition and development of subhuman regions and territories. Who advocated the establishment of America as the dominant world power, an America which would launch a mighty assault against the bestial marsh gases emanating from the decaying matter of Asia and Russia, and build up an indomitable deterrent force against threats to civilization whenever and wherever they arose. Who advocated the Americanization of the Western hemisphere, the pacification of the fierce jungles of Latin America under the umbrella of a liberal empire and in the sanctuary of a civilizing program, whose army, navy, guns, ammunition, labor, capital, markets and military bases, reaching from Paraguay to Panama to Cuba to Puerto Rico, would let the bells of freedom toll to the ends of the earth: "But in this age of world imperialism—the building of huge navies, the arms race, the acquisition of territories in undeveloped areas, the competition for foreign markets and goods—Wilson's New Freedom 'policy of friendship based on altruism' was to Hearst's way of thinking impracticable, if not astoundingly foolish. He envisioned the United States as a dominant world power. Much like Theodore Roosevelt, he believed that the civilized nations were the purveyors of culture, the protectors of laws and liberty, indeed the practitioners of democracy. Of course, the most practical way to carry out such a civilizing program was through an expanded empire, where American ideals and principles could be implemented immediately. Yet, when such possibilities were either inaccessible or unattainable, Hearst reasoned, the United States must act as a deterrent force against 'the threatening and tremendous assault of the Asiatic and the Slav upon the religion, the institutions, and the civilization of us Caucasians.' Hearst therefore crusaded for expanding the American empire. After his active participation in bringing about the Spanish American War, he continued to hail as exemplary the establishment of the military base in Cuba (at Guantanamo Bay) and the territorial acquisition of Puerto Rico." (William Randolph Hearst: The Later Years, 1911-1951 by Ben Proctor). The story of Hearst was the story of a man who championed the cause of humanity and civilization and sought to spread its virtues and goodness into the darkest and most benighted regions of the earth. Who sought to rescue indigenous lands from the monstrous jaws of political tyranny and savage ignorance in which they had been consumed for nameless, gloomy eons. Who sought to conquer, disinfect, immunize and heal barbarian societies with the antivirals and antibacterials of American armies and schools, and American methods of force and persuasion, which reason and justice demanded. Who recognized the natural, inalienable, indefeasible right of American forces, Western forces, liberal forces and progressive forces to occupy and confer a human character upon ancient cultures whose flags stood for blood and violence, and in so doing, to make the world safe for the survival, success, advantage and advancement of humanity: "The course for the Wilson administration was therefore clear, Hearst concluded. True to his progressive beliefs, he fervently urged the president 'to occupy Mexico and restore it to a state of civilization by means of American MEN and American METHODS.' In April 1914, when Wilson ordered US forces to seize the eastern port of Vera Cruz for what the New York American characterized as continued insults to the American flag, Hearst was only temporarily satisfied. By June, with conditions in Mexico continuing to deteriorate, he argued that annexation was the logical solution. 'Our flag should wave over Mexico as a symbol of the rehabilitation of that unhappy country and its redemption in humanity and civilization, because 'our right in Mexico is the right of HUMANITY.' After all, Hearst reasoned, 'if we

have no right in Mexico, we have no right in California or in Texas, which we redeemed from Mexico from savagery and for civilization.' Indeed, the American people 'have always fought for the cause of civilization and the principles of humanity. And what we conquer, let us conserve for the advantage and advancement of all humanity.' " (William Randolph Hearst: The Later Years, 1911-1951 by Ben Proctor). The story of Hearst was the story of a man who condemned President Roosevelt's New Deal as an egregious violation of the Constitution. Who understood that the function of a judge is to enforce the law and not to legislate from the bench, and to interpret constitutional texts in accordance with their plain meaning and not to conjure up meanings out of whole cloth in order to advance a social justice agenda. Who recognized that America is a nation governed by the rule of law and not the will of a dictator, and that the Supreme Court is the ultimate guardian of the people's rights and the final scale of constitutional justice, and not an engine of despotism, oppression, class war or mob revolution. Who understood that America, as a liberal society, was founded upon the principle of equal protection for all under the law, the principle of equal treatment, liberty and opportunity for rich man and poor man, black man and white man, immigrant and native born, and was not founded upon the tribalization, collectivization, disparagement and destruction of the individual: "Hearst then, in thoughtfully worded sentences, demonstrated his disdain for FDR'S New Deal. The Revolutionists of 1776 had intended 'to OBTAIN freedom, not to despise and discard it.' They had 'created a Supreme Court to interpret the Constitution, and maintain exact justice and equality before the law,' not like the New Dealers 'try to PACK THE SUPREME COURT and personally DICTATE the laws of the land.' And they had established 'a Congress to represent the WHOLE PEOPLE,' not 'a venal body subservient to the will of a dictator, receiving their reward in patronage for betrayal of the peoples rights.' Hearst then announced to his 10 million strong Sunday readership that 'if Mr. Roosevelt is ESPECIALLY descended from immigrants, he should remember that most of those immigrants came to this country to escape despotism, oppression, and extortion, and to find liberty, opportunity, and prosperity in those basic American institutions which misguided modern revolutionists of the New Deal are mistakenly endeavoring to disparage, demolish, and destroy.' " (William Randolph Hearst: The Later Years, 1911-1951 by Ben Proctor). When Hearst's friends and associates departed from his room and paid him their last respects, they briefly spoke to each other outside on the street before they went home. They spoke about a man whose legacy was truth in journalism, liberal idealism, and the defense of civilization against an advancing empire of totalitarian tyranny. They spoke about a man the likes of which the world never see again.

A MESSAGE TO GARCIA

In February 1898 in the Havana Harbor, 258 American sailors on board the USS Maine, stationed to protect the Cuban people in their war of independence, were sent to their deaths by an exploding torpedo fired by the Spanish government. The torpedo was part of a secret arsenal of torpedoes used by Spain to sabotage the efforts of freedom fighters on the island who were determined to repulse the overlords of Spanish persecution. Seeking to make contact with General Calixto Garcia, leader of the Cuban War of Independence, President William McKinley summoned First Lieutenant Andrew Rowan of the United States Army and gave him a message to deliver to Garcia. This message was a description of American idealism ranged against a criminal infernal machine set into motion by the agents of Spanish imperialism. This message described American power spread across the Western Hemisphere freeing the Cubans from the cruelties of the Spanish imperialist monarchy. It

described the long line of atrocities committed by Spain in Cuba, which culminated in the sinking of the USS Maine, which had made Americans resolved to fight the Spanish invaders. It described a decrepit, degenerate and despotic Spanish empire being rolled back by the armies of American civilization. It described Spanish troops placing Cubans in concentration camps where they were mauled to death by the wild panthers of hunger and disease. It described Secretary of the Navy Theodore Roosevelt and Colonel Leonard Wood at a regimental training camp in San Antonio, Texas, where they transformed hunters of the mountains and rough riders of the plains into disciplined soldiers trained to fight for the freedom of Cuba. It described the charge of the Rough Riders up San Juan Hill to show the world the practical meaning of American idealism. It transmitted the words of Henry Cabot Lodge who swore eternal allegiance to the Cubans in their struggle to gain their freedom and independence. Who sought to put an end to the enslavement and persecution of the Cuban people by any and all means possible. Who proclaimed that so long as Cubans were not free and lived in fear and horror, he, his fellow Americans and the citizens of the civilized world, were all Cubans, in heart, mind, spirit and soul: "Of the sympathies of the American people, generous, liberty-loving, I have no question. They are with the Cubans in their struggle for freedom. I believe our people would welcome any action on the part of the United States to put an end to the terrible state of things existing there. We can stop it. We can stop it peacefully. We can stop it, in my judgment, by pursuing a proper diplomacy and offering our good offices. Let it once be understood that we mean to stop the horrible state of things in Cuba and it will be stopped. The great power of the United States, if it is once invoked and uplifted, is capable of greater things than that." McKinley's message to Garcia transmitted the words of Albert Beveridge who exalted a global sentinel of liberty called America. Who exalted a nation whose coastlines framed a canvas of freedom and opportunity upon which the oppressed people of world would settle and compose their life story. Who exalted a land vitalized and ennobled by the currents of modern civilization, a land whose liberal institutions, liberal authority, liberal might, liberal blood, liberal folk, liberal toilers, liberal purpose and liberal mission, bequeathed by England, were destined to spread the blessings of a human way of life to the downtrodden subjects of Spanish rule in Cuba: "It is a noble land that God has given us; a land that can feed and clothe the world; a land whose coastlines would enclose half the countries of Europe; a land set like a sentinel between the two imperial oceans of the globe, a greater England with a nobler destiny. It is a mighty people that He has planted on this soil; a people sprung from the most masterful blood of history; a people perpetually revitalized by the virile, man producing working folk of all the earth; a people imperial by virtue of their power, by right of their institutions, by authority of their heaven directed purposes--the propagandists and not the misers of liberty." (The March Of The Flag by Albert Beveridge). McKinley's message to Garcia transmitted Beveridge's words of faith in the glorious future and decisive victory of human liberty. Words which exalted the soldiers and statesmen of America who understood their shining destiny and would not allow the sun of triumph ever to set upon it. It was the destiny to implant human civilization beyond the farthest boundaries of the known world: in barren, blazing deserts, in grim, hostile mountains, in wild, savage continents, and in unexplored nations and kingdoms, and to serve as prophets and martyrs for the cause of liberty on the island of Cuba: "It is a glorious history our God has bestowed upon His chosen people; a history heroic with faith in our mission and our future; a history of statesmen who flung the boundaries of the Republic out into unexplored lands and savage wilderness; a history of soldiers who carried the flag across blazing deserts and through the ranks of hostile mountains, even to the gates of sunset; a history of a multiplying people who overran a continent in half a century; a history of prophets who saw the consequences of evils

inherited from the past and of martyrs who died to save us from them; a history divinely logical, in the process of whose tremendous reasoning we find ourselves today." (The March Of The Flag by Albert Beveridge). McKinley's message to Garcia transmitted Beveridge's words which recognized the right of America to unfurl its flag of liberal government upon the most distant, savage, oppressed shores. Which recognized that human beings who do not live and flourish as human beings ought to live and flourish are not, morally speaking, human beings and are not entitled to enjoy the blessings of self government. Which recognized that the notion of consent does not apply to children or to human appearing animals and they are not entitled to be protected from the imposition of aggressive violence. Which looked forward to the day when the reeking miasma of bloodshed, plunder, cruelty and extortion which engulfs foreign lands like a whirling black cloud is lifted and dispelled by the placid sunshine of benevolent, refined, civilized, enlightened authority. Which eagerly awaited the time when the gates of Asia were hurled open to the rule of liberty and law, when the territories of the East were impelled to become compassionate and humane, when the islands of the Atlantic and the Pacific were educated in the ways of reason and virtue, when the people of Cuba, long treated unjustly by the Spanish throne, were given back their rights, the sovereignty and their dignity, and when the world became America's and the world became free: "Hawaii is ours; Puerto Rico is to be ours; at the prayer of her people Cuba finally will be ours; in the islands of the East, even to the gates of Asia, coaling stations are to be ours at the very least; the flag of a liberal government is to float over the Philippines, and may it be the banner that Taylor unfurled in Texas and Fremont carried to the coast. The Opposition tells us that we ought not to govern a people without their consent. I answer, The rule of liberty that all just government derives its authority from the consent of the governed, applies only to those who are capable of self government We govern the Indians without their consent, we govern our territories without their consent, we govern our children without their consent. How do they know what our government would be without their consent? Would not the people of the Philippines prefer the just, humane, civilizing government of this Republic to the savage, bloody rule of pillage and extortion from which we have rescued them? And, regardless of this formula of words made only for enlightened, self governing people, do we owe no duty to the world? Shall we turn these peoples back to the reeking hands from which we have taken them? Shall we abandon them, with Germany, England, Japan, hungering for them? Shall we save them from those nations, to give them a self rule of tragedy? " (The March Of The Flag by Albert Beveridge). When Garcia finished reading the message given to him by McKinley, he slipped into a reverie and the following scenes passed through his mind, forming a progression of events leading up to a glorious climax. In the first scene, Spanish troops line up Cuban rebels against a wall and fire a volley. There is a flash of rifles and drifting smoke. In the second scene, the Spanish sink the USS Maine with a torpedo and the explosion claims the lives of most of the crew. In the third scene are the three musketeers of the Spanish-American War for the liberation of Cuba: Theodore Roosevelt, who led the war on the battlefield; Henry Cabot Lodge, who led the war on the floor of the Senate; and William Randolph Hearst, who led the war on the pages of newspapers and in the homes of each and every American. In the fourth scene is the image of an American eagle spreading its wings from the Philippines to Puerto Rico, 16,000 kilometers from tip to tip, sheltering the free people of Cuba. Garcia woke up from his dream and contemplated the true story which he had beheld. It laid a wreathe of glory and nobility upon the infantry and cavalry of American imperialism.

THE ENEMIES OF GLOBAL CAPITALISM

The twentieth century commenced the sharp downhill slide of the West into the raging fever swamps of pure collectivism. This moral and political calamity saw the rejection of the notion of civil citizenship, first championed in the eighteenth century during the Age of Enlightenment, which guaranteed to the individual the rights to property, personal liberty and due process of law, in favor of the new notion of social citizenship, which rejected individual rights and viewed the individual as born enslaved within a nexus of social responsibility. Rejecting the Enlightenment ideal of a minimal state combined with maximum individual freedom, the twentieth century championed the reverse ideal of a maximum state combined with minimum individual freedom, and reduced the individual to the level of a rightless cog in the machinery of the social organism, duty bound to serve his fellow man. Proclaiming that the individual has a right to have his basic material needs satisfied by others, and that the individual was born on this earth encumbered by the moral obligation to live, breath, think, act and work for the sake of others, the religion of collectivism which gained ascendancy in the twentieth century has declared open war against the advance of global capitalism and sought to turn back the clock of history to the nameless, gloomy eons when freedom was unknown and the clan, tribe and bloodthirsty kingdom ruled the life and career of the individual. The enemies of global capitalism wear many faces and masks but all stand united in their implacable hatred of freedom and their single minded determination to crush the individual beneath the dead weight of a collective entity, whether it be a gender, race, class or nation. The first salvo against global capitalism was launched in the mid nineteenth century and took a half a century to land and take full effect. Expelled from the capital cities of the European continent, a moral and spiritual virus landed in London, and under the shelter of the English system of liberty which he so vehemently despised, composed a program and manifesto for the sewage currents of society which had gathered around him and worshiped him as their prophet and savior. Listen to the words of Karl Marx who promotes a religion of materialism which denies the existence of the human mind and views matter, muscles and machinery as irreducible primaries. Who proclaims that the source of all wealth and profits resides in brute muscular labor, that matter controls spirit, muscles create capital and machines originate ideas, and that the class of intellectual laborers or knowledge workers, called the bourgeois, does not in fact perform any real work but only exploits, expropriates and enslaves the true working class, called the proletariat. Who proclaims that this oppressed class of muscular, manual, unskilled, proletarian laborers must organize themselves, form a vast army and stage a mighty revolution. This will be a revolution to overthrow the world of modern manufacturing and industry, the modern legal system of individual rights on which it is based, and the global liberal capitalist order, and establish in their place a global people's order manned by the sergeants, officers and overlookers of red totalitarian tyranny: "Modern industry has converted the little workshop of the patriarchal master into the great factory of the industrial capitalist. Masses of laborers, crowded into the factory, are organized like soldiers. As privates of the industrial army they are placed under the command of a perfect hierarchy of officers and sergeants. Not only are they slaves of the bourgeois class, and of the bourgeois state; they are daily and hourly enslaved by the machine, by the overlooker, and, above all, by the individual bourgeois manufacturer himself. The more openly this despotism proclaims gain to be its end and aim, the more petty, the more hateful and the more embittering it is. The less the skill and exertion of strength implied in manual labor, in other words, the more modern industry becomes developed, the more is the labor of men superseded by that of women. Differences of age and sex have no longer any distinctive social validity for the working class. All are instruments of labor, more or less expensive to use, according to their age and sex. No sooner is the exploitation of the laborer by the manufacturer, so far, at an end, that he receives his wages in cash, than he is set upon by the other portions of the bourgeois, the landlord, the shopkeeper, the pawnbroker, etc." (The Communist Manifesto by Karl Marx and Friedrich Engels). As the Marxist missile landed and exploded into the twentieth century and its heat and blast gave rise to the international communist movement and conspiracy, one of Marx's students stepped forward onto the stage of history and made a discovery as evil and sinister as that of his master. Just as Marx had discovered the socialism of the proletariat and fueled its war of hatred against global capitalism, so his preeminent student discovered the socialism of the race and fatherland and fueled its war of hatred against global capitalism. Listen to the words of Adolf Hitler who condemns the capitalist system of global freedom and liberty. Who calls for a reawakening of the primitive forces of race and blood and the formation of nationalist economic systems. Who condemns the order of international finance, banking, trade and currency standards and their liberation of labor and capital throughout the world. Who condemns the order of global freedom as a raging cataract of financial catastrophe and makes a clarion call for the creation of a new movement. This is a movement of race hatred, primitive tribalism and fatherland worship which will sweep away the aims, missions, programs and policies of Enlightenment civilization: "It is today no longer possible to build up a state on a capitalist basis. The peoples eventually begin to stir. The awakening of the peoples cannot be prevented by wars. On the contrary, war will only hasten it. Such states will be ruined by financial catastrophes which will destroy the foundations of their own former financial policy. The gold standard will not emerge victorious from this war. Rather, the national economic systems will conquer. And these will carry on among themselves the trade that is necessary for them. Whether this does or does not suit a few gold standard bankers in the world is quite immaterial. And if some of these gold bankers declare: 'We cannot tolerate your trading with this or that country,' it is none of their business. In future the peoples will decline to accept rules as to their trade policy laid down by a few bankers. They will follow the policy which is best adapted to their needs. I am not the slave of a few international banking syndicates. I am under no obligation to any capitalist group. I sprang from the German people. My Movement, our Movement, is a German people's Movement, and it is only to this German people that we are obligated " (Speech To The National Socialist Party In Munich, February 1941, by Adolf Hitler). Global capitalism is the greatest political and economic invention in the history of mankind. A product of the Enlightenment, global capitalism is the order of freedom which transcends national borders. It is the order of private economy, private production, private trade, private exchange, private information, private distribution, private profit, private corporations, private capital, private labor, private finance, private investment, private partnerships, private competition, private transactions, private relations, private contracts and private markets which has extended the reach of freedom to everyone everywhere on the planet. It stands today in the throes of death agony and a death rattle. For the world is evenly divided between two camps of anticapitalists, who are fighting each other and fighting their common enemy for global mastery and control. The first camp has descended directly from Marx and marches under the banners of global proletarian socialism. The second camp has descended from Marx via Hitler and marches under the banners of gender, race and nationalist politics. Listen to the words of a Marxist proletarian globalist who condemns the global movement of freedom which has brought forth the scimitars of deregulation, privatized economies, cut back welfare states, and demanded greater self responsibility from all. Who seeks to make the springtime Age of the Enlightenment a political and cultural irrelevancy and establish a new international order.

Marching under the banners of Occupy Wall Street and the struggle of the working class, this is a revolution to contract the moral and spiritual quality of life down to a vanishing point by placing freedom in permanent recession and retreat. This is a revolution to take possession of private property, private wealth, private prosperity and private rights and commence an age of popular despotism and dictatorship: "From its inception in mid September, Occupy Wall Street has identified with the revolutionary Arab Spring in a spirit of internationalism that sees the struggle of working people everywhere against the ravages of recessionary economies governed by deregulation, privatization, and austerity measures. These policies have meant foreclosures, unemployment, downsizing, and a generally lower quality of life for most of us while the very rich enjoy a prosperity not seen since the Gilded Age." (Occupy Wall Street And The Rhetoric of Equality by Deborah Jacobs). Listen to the words of an antiglobalist national socialist who rejects the right of the individual to live and work for himself and demands that consumers pay higher prices for domestically made goods in order to support their fellow tribesmen. Who demands massive tariffs on imports and a Buy American program to advance the power and glory of the Fatherland: "Obviously, a lot of consumers would happily pay more to know that something is made in the USA—or at least not in China. We'd like to support our fellow Americans. How about that search refinement, Amazon? 'Made in USA-including constituent parts' or '0% Chinese.' I'd wager these would be more popular than the hundreds of other search parameters, such as star ratings, price, manufacturer, prime, calories, gluten free and so on. Where are the massive tariffs on Chinese goods and the Buy American programs?" (The Bill For Globalism Has Arrived by Anne Coulter). The twenty first century has brought the arrival of mounted riders of the apocalypse. Named Gender, Race, Class and Nation, these figures have laid civilization to rest in a graveyard marked *Identity Politics*.

THE SHAME OF THE CITIES

Garbage lies strewn across a sidewalk. Vagrants are sleeping on it in a drug induced stupor. Pedestrians walk by it and scatter it into the gutter. Behind the sidewalk is a wall and on the walk is the gigantic shadow of a rat. These baneful rodents are in control of today's cities, both literally and metaphorically. The rats of red politics have granted mastery of the streets to the actual animals and together the two have lowered the curtain on centuries of metropolitan progress. While cities have traditionally been shining, soaring symbols of capitalist power and success, since the dawn of the twentieth century they have become magnets, tanks, bowls and receptacles for the socialist masses, symbols of a cultural shift toward the left which has composed the final chapter of the West. In America in the last presidential election, rural dwellers voted for the politics of freedom championed by Donald Trump, while urban dwellers voted for the politics of gender, race and class championed by Hilary Clinton. In Europe, rural dwellers oppose unrestricted immigration and demand the assimilation of newcomers to liberal values, while urban dwellers promote the politics of moral relativism and multiculturalism and have opened the borders of their nations to the enemies of civilization. In Britain, rural dwellers supported Brexit with its promise of a return to Anglo-Saxon liberty, while urban dwellers opposed Brexit and sought to achieve ever closer connections to the politics of statism and dictatorship which the European Union had come to represent. From San Diego and to Stuttgart to cities across Switzerland, the reds have marched on city hall and assumed control over its policies and programs. A portrait of a city is a portrait of mass aggregation. It is a portrait of antiliberal, anticapitalist, antindustrial and antiprogress administrations. It is a portrait of radicals for expansive government and a portrait of the decline and fall of the West: "In Switzerland, big cities are governed by left

wing administrations, but they are islands in a more center-right sea. Newly released statistics confirm the picture. In the six Swiss cities with over 100,000 inhabitants (Zurich, Geneva, Basel, Lausanne, Bern, Winterthur) left wing groups held over seventy percent of local government positions in 2018, the Federal Statistical Office (FSO) reported on Tuesday. As the towns become smaller, the profile changes: in urban areas of under 20,000, just twenty three percent of seats are held by the left; the most represented group in these towns is the center-right Liberal Radicals. Indeed the Liberal Radicals are the most successful party overall in the 172 towns and cities examined by the FSO, holding thirty percent of the seats. Along with the People's Party and Christian Democrats, the center-right and right account for over half of all seats. Regionally, the picture also conforms to received wisdom: French speaking towns and cities are more left than the national average, while in Ticino things lean towards the right. As for the right wing People's Party, their urban base is almost exclusively confined to towns and cities in German speaking Switzerland. Greens have continued to progress and stood at seven percent of seats nationally in 2018." (The Bigger The City, The More Left Wing Its Politics by Swiss Info). Ruled by the reds, America's cities are case studies of moral degeneration luxuriating in mountains of filth. Chased away by decent, law abiding people bearing torch lights blazing with virtue and righteousness, the Devil was granted sanctuary in America's cities and see how he set up shop. From Baltimore to Buffalo to Birmingham to Brownsville to Los Angeles to Seattle to Cleveland to Memphis, the Devil's story, the story of savage jungles defiling lands settled by civilized people, remains the same, and only the names, dates and protagonists have changed. It is the story of homelessness and impoverishment stalking unsafe streets. It is the story of safe harbor given to illegal immigrants. It is the story of violent crime bringing down darkness at noon and make people scared to leave their own homes and scared to look at their own shadows. It is the story of a sprawl of zeroes, zero tax base, zero infrastructure, zero employers, zero trained workers, zero business incentives, zero corporate investment, zero border controls and zero law enforcement, laying pavements of downfall and decline across fields of nothingness. It is the story of lives and careers drawn, quartered, plundered and ransacked by the mounted riders of murder, manslaughter, robbery and aggravated assault. It is the story of citizens deprived of their Second Amendment rights and all means to protect themselves. It is the story of onerous tax burdens, excessive business regulations, unrelenting crime waves, snakes directing black markets, scoundrels peddling vice and degeneracy, and specimens of subhumanity without moral health or well being abolishing safety and security in the streets. Listen to the words of a traitor and turncoat in a land of freedom called America who entered the precincts of today's urban sewers and embraced the cause of totalitarianism. Who descended into an inferno of collectivist politics and scorched his soul. Who renounced his belief that human beings are born in a state of freedom and dignity and not born enslaved in a nexus of social responsibility. Who renounced his belief in natural law mandating the freedom of man when he underwent the Devil's baptism in the urban fever swamps and became a programmed robot. Who became a machine replicating human movements and functions but without a human mind or conscience, a fearsome automaton whose websites and messages promote socialized medicine, universal healthcare, state aggression against the individual, the sacrifice of all to all, and the dissolution of five centuries of liberal order: "There is perhaps no other single issue I have had such a hard 180degree turn on than healthcare. As a conservative, I vehemently opposed Obamacare and saw it as a slippery slope to a single payer healthcare system—in other words, socialized medicine. But now I live in California and, self employed, need to provide my own healthcare. Using the Covered California website to find a healthcare plan, I find that the cheapest possible plan is about \$500 per month—plus another \$40 for dental coverage.

That's \$6,480 per year just for health insurance, which doesn't include copays (\$75 per visit because the premium is so cheap) and medication. I know California isn't the most expensive in the country, but it's still a huge amount of money for a self employed person to spend out of pocket. I recognize that a lot of people in California are in far more dire financial situations than I am. How can they afford healthcare? I have a new opinion about universal healthcare: Bring it on—the sooner the better. Thirty year old Dave would not even recognize me." (I'm A Conservative Who Moved To A Liberal City, And I Was Surprised To See My Views Change On Several Issues by Dave Johnson). Listen to the reds who celebrate the totalitarian coloration of the city. Whose mayors, masses, labor unions, professional classes, teachers, professors, writers and intelligentsia have marched on city hall and enforced socialism on every street corner. Who have breached the wall of separation between church and state, built up laboriously and with great struggle over the centuries by liberal jurisprudence, and corrupted public municipal offices with the tenets of a new religion. This is a religion of social justice and social responsibility in which the state has been granted total control over social and economic affairs and the individual has been reduced to a rightless cog in the machinery of the people's municipal council. This is a religion whose activists and clergy have lowered the curtain on liberal freedom, capitalism and self responsibility and crushed every man, woman and child within the maw of a hyperleviathan promoting universal slavery in the name of progressive social reform: "Socialist Kshama Sawant's election to the Seattle City Council in November 2013 made national news, a kind of man bites dog story that the media found shocking and irresistible. The Los Angeles Times's front page article described Sawant as '41 year old software-engineer-turned-far-left-sweetheart.' The Seattle Times called her 'the council's first socialist member in modern history.' In fact, the United States has a long tradition of municipal socialism. One hundred years ago, at the Socialist Party's high point, about 1,200 party members held public office in 340 cities, including seventy nine mayors in cities such as Milwaukee, Buffalo, Minneapolis, Reading, and Schenectady. (Before Sawant, the last socialist to get elected in Seattle was journalist Anna Louise Strong, who won a seat on the School Board in 1916). These local leaders, whose ranks included working class labor union members and middle class radicals such as teachers, clergy, and lawyers, worked alongside progressive reformers to improve living and working conditions in the nation's burgeoning cities. In today's hypercapitalist economy, their experience may still offer some lessons for contemporary activists." (Radicals In City Hall: An American Tradition by Peter Drier). The city is the natural home of the masses and the sins of the masses are the sins of the cities. Endless rows of beggars and thieves. Swirling currents of refuse and filth. Unabashed peddlers of vice and debasement. Ear splitting tub thumpers demanding occupation and revolution. Gangland leaders spreading a scourge of violence and homicide. Misfits and degenerates vanishing fetal position into corners of drug induced euphoria. Such are scenes from the cities of today presided over by the reds and the rats reproducing like the Black Death in the dying hours of the West.

THE YELLOW PERIL

For centuries before the red peril of Marxism streamed out of China and loomed over the free world, there had been an indigenous yellow peril which cast its hideous shadow and threatened the lives of civilized people. Before the relentless advance of this threat, the citizens of the West, who earned their living through honest labor framed in the garlands of moral uprightness, sought to guard their most sacred possessions, their values, ideals and way of life, and launched wars of conquest, subjugation, colonization and extermination.

Brave beyond words of description and unflinching in the face of unmitigated horror, the defenders of the West looked into the face of the Chinese monster whose flames and tentacles had scorched the institutions of virtuous, law abiding people and grabbed hold of their homes, offices, schools and neighborhoods, and reported to their friends and allies all that they saw and heard. They saw a pervasive moral vacuum devoid of Anglo-Saxon notions of human rights. They saw a people without moral compass or Western style appreciation of individual rights. They saw a society which denigrated liberal institutions and a society whose view of the relation between the state and individual was that between a master and slave. They saw a society without a minimum fulfillment of rights and freedoms and a society which sacrificed human dignity and individual autonomy upon the altar of safety nets and social justice. They saw a society in which tribalism and authoritarianism were justified as the Chinese people's selection of their own social and political system. They saw a society which proclaimed that there is no such thing as an abuse of human rights by the state because the notion of human rights is a Western construct and has no meaning in the superior Chinese order ruled by clans, families and tribes. They saw a society which proclaimed that the traditional Western focus on individual rights is based on the illusion of separateness and multiplicity and must be swept aside by a Chinese national revolution which will establish collective socioeconomic justice. They saw a society which proclaimed that the people's right to subsistence and security takes precedence over their right to live in freedom and dignity. They saw a society which proclaimed that the people have a right to enjoy a minimum standard of living and enjoy a continual improvement in that standard and the right to enjoy nothing else in the way of individual constitutional rights. They saw a society which proclaimed that the ideal state is a Confucian state which has renounced the language of individual rights and based legitimate governmental rule upon the achievement of collective economic welfare. They saw a society which proclaimed that the ideal state is one which reflects the ways in which ordinary Chinese people think and act and is thus one which deemphasizes the protection of human rights and promotes in its place national socioeconomic progress and development. They saw a society which proclaimed that the ideal government is interventionist, proactive and not constitutionally circumscribed; it promotes collective economic welfare and security; and rejects the existence of individual, natural. inalienable rights. They saw a society which proclaimed that the highest and noblest form of citizenship is Chinese style social citizenship, which establishes the mystical collective right to economic welfare and security, while the lowest, basest form of citizenship is Western style liberal, minimal citizenship, which establishes individual rights to property, liberty and due process of law. They saw a society which proclaimed that the ideal state is derived from the Confucian tradition and recognizes the right of the individual to possess an acceptable socioeconomic status, to have his basic material needs satisfied, and to live and prosper in a social welfarist order. They saw a society which proclaimed that the ideal state is one which has rejected the Western notions of private rights and circumscribed government and fulfilled its social responsibilities. It has confiscated wealth from those who are talented and successful to ensure that the masses of human appearing debris are fully protected, their livelihoods are unconditionally guaranteed, and their animal impulses are abundantly satisfied. They saw a society which proclaimed that the skillful management of state affairs requires the establishment of a social economy which protects and promotes the means of securing life's necessities of the most debased, degenerate classes. Listen to the words of Horace Greeley who describes a class of beings without the mental or moral qualities proper to civilized people. A class driven relentlessly onward by depraved desires and the impulse to bestial gratification. A class injecting itself with lines of vice and corruption and without human self respect of any kind. A class carried away in endless,

aimless clouds of sleep and euphoria. A class inhabiting houses of dissipation bathed in the red lights of analgesia to relieve itself of the pain of existing. A class secluding itself from the demands of reality, lying prostrate in dens of iniquity, and blanketing itself in clouds of opium smoke. A class who sole export to the West was drug abuse and built lairs of intoxication wherever it lived, breathed and fouled the air. A class whose highest calling was chaos, crime, license and the break up of friendships, homes and families. A class unable to speak the language of decent, upright, hard working people and whose only words were those of diseased wolves scavenging the streets for subsistence while luxuriating in altered states of consciousness. A class of repellent monsters reproducing in the mine shafts of the Devil and officially called the Chinese: "The Chinese are hardly used here. In the first place, they are taxed four dollars each per month for the naked privilege of mining at all. Next, they are not allowed to mine anywhere but in diggings which white men have worked out and abandoned, or which no white man considers worth working. Thirdly, if these rejected diggings happen, in Chinese hands, to prove better than their reputation, and to begin yielding liberally, a mob of white sovereigns soon drive the Chinese out of them, neck and heels. John [Chinaman] does not seem to be a very bad fellow, but he is treated worse than though he were. He is not malignant nor sanguinary, and seldom harms any but his own tribe. But he is thoroughly sensual, and intent on the fullest gratification of his carnal appetites, and on nothing else. He eats and drinks the best he can get, and as much as he can hold; but he is never so devoid of self respect as to be seen drunk in a public place; even for an opium debauch, he secludes himself where none but a friendly eye can reach him. His 'particular vanity' in the eating line is rice, whereof he will have the best only, if the best is to be had; he likes a fat chicken also, and will pay his last dollar for one, rather than go without. Lacking the dollar, it is charged that he will rob hen roosts; at all events, hen roosts are sometimes robbed, and John has to bear the blame. He is popularly held to spend nothing, but carry all his gains out of the country and home to his native land--a charge disproved by the fact that he is an inveterate gambler, an opium smoker, a habitual rum drinker, and a devotee of every sensual vice. But he is weak in body, and not allowed to vote, so it is safe to trample on him; he does not write English, and so cannot tell the story of his wrongs; he has no family here (the few Chinese women brought to this country being utterly shameless and abandoned), so that he forms no domestic ties, and enjoys no social standing. Even the wretched Indians of California repel with scorn the suggestion that there is any kinship between their race and the Chinese. John has traits which I can neither praise nor justify; yet I suspect that, if other men's faults were punished as severely as his, a good many Californians would be less comfortable than they are." (California Mines and Mining by Horace Greeley). For four decades after the communist seizure of power in 1949, China existed in name only. It was not a sovereign, independent nation but a member of the international communist movement and conspiracy under the command of the Soviet Union, enforcing its Brezhnev Doctrine against satellite dissenters. After the fall of international communism, China regained its independence and began threatening the West anew as the yellow peril of yore. The unleashing of a global disease pandemic caused by its consumption of and intercourse with wild animals. The systematic theft of patents, copyrights and high technology. Espionage cells organized in every city in America. Military aggression in the South China Sea. Violations of nuclear nonproliferation agreements. The manipulation of its currency. Unfair trade practices culminating in dumping. The abolition of Hong Kong's special status as an autonomous region under the "one country, two systems" agreement with Britain through the establishment of a National Security Law. This law will prohibit individual freedom, parliamentary democracy, the rule of constitutional law and connections with the West in Hong Kong as acts of "treason, secession, sedition and subversion".

Uninformed observers have described these developments as part of "the new China". They are in point of fact part of the old China and they have returned to wage war on the West and the disrupt peace of the world.

TWO TRIALS IN ANTIQUITY

The time is 399 BC. The place is Athens. A man has been placed on trial and condemned to death by the popular assembly on the charge of opposing the prevailing liberal order and the philosophy of subjectivism on which it is based, and for championing the cause of universal truth and morality. Four centuries later, in Jerusalem, a man has been placed on trial and condemned to death on the charge of opposing the order of reason and sanity and promoting the dispensation of fear and superstition in its place. Two trials which took place in the Classical world, the first, the trial of Socrates, which disgraced this world, the second, the trial of Jesus, which ennobled it. A severe critic of liberalism and its ethos of relativism and tolerance, Socrates was convicted of employing his philosophic talents and abilities to pervert his younger friends and associates from loyalty to this order, which had retaken power in Athens in 403 BC. Listen to the words of Socrates which proclaim that the order of liberalism is the order of the mob. Which proclaim that liberal societies are moral monstrosities and alliances of human appearing animals whose cardinal organizing principle is the projection of truth and morality as relative to whim and fancy. Which proclaim that liberal societies are like ships without captains which have filled themselves with the swirling waters of moral subjectivism and sunk to the bottom of the ocean of moral iniquity. Which proclaim that liberal societies are morally blind, morally infirm, morally deaf, morally mute and lack the moral compass and navigating power which enable civilized societies to steer past the sea monsters of vice and degeneracy. Which proclaim that liberal societies violate the principle of fundamental justice by granting to worthless, contemptible scum of the earth the right to hold the reins of power and to direct the ship of state. Which proclaim that liberal societies have blocked the moral senses and faculties, chained up the champions of virtue and nobility, drawn and quartered the exemplars of human flourishing, ingested the narcotic of the disturbed, the amphetamines of rancor and resentment, staged popular uprisings and acts of mass violence, mutinied against the order of justice and desert, taken possession of the economic and political power which they are not morally entitled to possess, ransacked and plundered the factories and grain stores of civilization, and feasted and drank their way into the lowest rungs of hell and damnation. Which proclaim that liberal societies are terrifying voyages into moral and spiritual destruction conducted by the partisans, pilots, seamen, sailors and captains of the multitudes, the statesmen plying the classes of the indolent, the shiftless, the irresponsible and the good for nothing. Commanding the apparatus of compulsion, coercion, and public slander and vilification, these leaders have taken the helm of moral, political and social authority and closed the story of mankind with a final chapter entitled: The Permanent Winter Season Of Moral Turpitude And Mass Murder: "I perceive, I said, that you are vastly amused at having plunged me into such a hopeless discussion; but now hear the parable, and then you will be still more amused at the meagerness of my imagination: for the manner in which the best men are treated in their own States is so grievous that no single thing on earth is comparable to it; and therefore, if I am to plead their cause, I must have recourse to fiction, and put together a figure made up of many things, like the fabulous unions of goats and stags which are found in pictures. Imagine then a fleet or a ship in which there is a captain who is taller and stronger than any of the crew, but he is a little deaf and has a similar infirmity in sight, and his knowledge of navigation is not much better. The sailors are quarreling with one

another about the steering --every one is of opinion that he has a right to steer, though he has never learned the art of navigation and cannot tell who taught him or when he learned, and will further assert that it cannot be taught, and they are ready to cut in pieces any one who says the contrary. They throng about the captain, begging and praying him to commit the helm to them; and if at any time they do not prevail, but others are preferred to them, they kill the others or throw them overboard, and having first chained up the noble captain's senses with drink or some narcotic drug, they mutiny and take possession of the ship and make free with the stores; thus, eating and drinking, they proceed on their voyage in such a manner as might be expected of them. He who is their partisan and cleverly aids them in their plot for getting the ship out of the captain's hands into their own whether by force or persuasion, they compliment with the name of sailor, pilot, able seaman, and abuse the other sort of man, whom they call a good for nothing; but that the true pilot must pay attention to the year and seasons and sky and stars and winds, and whatever else belongs to his art, if he intends to be really qualified for the command of a ship, and that he must and will be the steerer, whether other people like or not-the possibility of this union of authority with the steerer's art, has never seriously entered into their thoughts or been made part of their calling. Now in vessels which are in a state of mutiny and by sailors who are mutineers, how will the true pilot be regarded? Will he not be called by them a prater, a star gazer, a good for nothing?" (The Republic by Plato, Book VI). In 33 AD, Jesus was brought before the Roman governor of Judea, Pontius Pilate, and charged with spreading a mass movement of fear and superstition, and was found guilty and executed. Proclaiming himself to be the King of the Jews and the Son of God, Jesus sought to cast moral darkness and a moral eclipse across the noonday fields of Classical reason and sanity. The Roman historian Tacitus describes a Jewish poison from the East called Christ. He describes the thoughts and deeds of a Jewish criminal who peddled spiritual evil and intellectual horror, who told the defenders of empirical science to feel ashamed of themselves before the higher order of faith and feeling and to show regret and remorse for their sins and transgressions, and who was fueled by a single, passionate, implacable, overriding hatred for the human race. He describes the crucifixion of Jesus, when his flaming corpse lifted the darkness of ignorance and reverence for the supernatural which he had brought forth, and allowed the sunlight of pagan enlightenment and soundness of mind to shine through: "The originator of the name, Christ, was executed as a criminal by the governor Pontius Pilate during the reign of Tiberius; and though repressed, this destructive superstition erupted again, not only through Judea, which was the origin of this evil, but also through the city of Rome, to which all that is horrible and shameful floods together and is celebrated. Therefore, first those were seized who admitted their faith, and then, using the information they provided, a vast multitude were convicted, not so much for the crime of burning the city, but for hatred of the human race. And perishing they were additionally made into sports: they were killed by dogs by having the hides of beasts attached to them, or they were nailed to crosses or set aflame, and, when the daylight passed away, they were used as nighttime lamps." (Annals by Tacitus). Socrates and Jesus were spokesmen for two movements. Socrates was the spokesman for a Classical movement of reason, while Jesus was the spokesman for a Jewish movement of faith. Socrates was a pagan Greek who was guided by a clear, dispassionate intellect focused exclusively upon the world of reality, while Jesus was a member of the Arabian culture who was guided by his feelings and suffered from schizophrenia. Listen to Jesus's schizophrenic ravings in his claims to perform miracles and in his fantastic delusions of grandeur: "Do not believe me unless I do the works of my Father. But if I do them, even though you do not believe me, believe the works, that you may know and understand that the Father is in me, and I in the Father." (John 10:37-38). The condemnation of Socrates was a travesty of justice, a criminal conspiracy against an innocent man, and a massive indictment of the liberal order. Socrates was convicted of a thought crime, a crime of conscience, the crime of believing that man has a definition, that man is a rational animal, and that those who, by their choices and actions, have ignored this definition and refused to live a life of human flourishing have misused their freedom and are not in justice entitled to enjoy human rights. The condemnation of Jesus was the epitome and perfection of justice; it was the eradication of a sworn enemy of mental maturity, balance, health and well being; the execution of a prophet of mysticism, mania, madness and superstition. Jesus was arrested, tried, convicted and executed by the forces of reason. After his death, there was a resurrection, not of Jesus, but of the sickness for which he stood. The resurrection fueled a global movement which would, centuries later, inspire the leading philosophers of the Faustian West. Inhabited by the spirit of Jesus, the most influential philosopher of the West proclaimed: "I have found it necessary to deny knowledge in order to make room for faith." (The Critique of Pure Reason by Immanuel Kant). Two groups which the Romans in their heyday had sought to exterminate, the Christians and the Germans, lived on in spirit in the succeeding culture of the West. The spirit of a man who martyred himself for the cause of truth, the spirit of Socrates, would never anywhere rise again.

ANCIENT POISONS FROM THE EAST

The plague is a contagious bacterial disease which produces fever and delirium. In the fourteenth century in Europe, a plague coming from central Asia and China, carried by fleas and rats, killed one third of the population. Three thousand years ago, in the deserts of Arabia, a plague of the soul entered the life of mankind via spiritual fleas and rats called the people of Israel, and this plague would, over the course of centuries, spread throughout the world and contaminate and destroy the lives of millions of people. This was the plague of the monotheism, the belief in a supernatural creator of the universe, and carried by the Jews, the Christians and the Muslims, it introduced a form of psychological corruption which, whenever and wherever it was allowed to take hold and flourish, would halt and prevent the course of proper human development. Revealed by Abraham, the ancestor of the Israelites, by Jesus, the messiah of the Christians and by Muhammad, the prophet of the Muslims, the belief that existence has a cause outside of itself and is sustained at every moment by the arbitrary will of a supernatural deity is the symptom of a mental fever and delirium without parallel in the history of ancient religions, and has brought forth a culture of superstition, violence, bigotry and sectarianism which has blackened the history of mankind. Look at the insanity brought forth by the Abrahamic religions, look at three thousand years' worth of foaming mental sickness and rabid, convulsive fanaticism, and see what the world looks like when viewed from inside the minds of the masses, the misfits and the miasmas of the gutter. This is a world which proclaims that the highest and greatest reality is that of an eternal and infinite God who created the universe out of nothingness and who rules, reveals, loves, judges, punishes and forgives. It proclaims that God is omnipotent and can will any contradiction into existence and make entities violate their natures and act in a manner which contradicts what they are. It proclaims that God is all powerful and is unrestrained by the laws of logic and can make a thing to be black all over and white all over at one and the same time. It proclaims that God is revealed in the figure of Jesus, the son of God, and in the Holy Spirit, and this trinity of God, the son and the holy spirit constitutes the supreme dimension beyond the perceived realm of physical objects. It proclaims that Jesus is the savior of mankind, the expiator of its sins through his sacrifice, and is God incarnate. It proclaims that God sends prophets and angels to mankind as his messengers to reveal his will. It proclaims that on the day of the Last Judgment, in the distant future, God will intervene in human history and separate the saved from the damned, and the saved will ascend to a blessed life in Heaven, while the damned will descend into the fiery depths of sulphur and brimstone and endure the agonies of Hell. It proclaims that the basis of morality is mysticism and the good consists in obedience to laws of God and evil in disobedience. It proclaims that history has a beginning and an end, and began with God's creation of the world, and will end with the final judgment, the resurrection of the dead, and the supernatural world to come. It proclaims that Jerusalem is a holy city because Isaac's sacrifice at God's command took place there. It proclaims that Jerusalem is a holy city because Jesus was brought there as a child, and in the city preached and healed, drove the money changers from the temple, was arrested in Gethsemane on the charge of heresy, was tried and convicted, held the Last Supper, died on the cross, was buried, resurrected and ascended to heaven, and will return to earth on the Day of Judgment. It proclaims that Jerusalem is a holy city because the Al Aqsa Mosque, the most important mosque after the mosques in Mecca and Medina, is located there, the first Muslims prayed toward Jerusalem, and Muhammad ascended through the Seven Heavens on a winged mule named Burag, guided by the Archangel Gabriel, from the Temple Mount in the city. It proclaims that Abraham was the father of the children of Israel to whom God promised a great nation: "I will make of you a great nation and I will bless you." (Genesis 12:2). It proclaims that God made an agreement with Abraham to be his god and the god of his descendants: "I will maintain my covenant between me and you and your descendants after you throughout the ages as an everlasting covenant, to be your God and the God of your descendants after you ." (Genesis 17:7). It proclaims that Abraham is a role model for all good people because he blindly obeyed the will of God by offering his innocent son Isaac as a sacrifice, which was a foreshadowing of God's offering of his innocent son Jesus as a sacrifice. It proclaims that Abraham is a prophet and messenger of God who stands in a long, illustrious line of prophets and messengers, from Adam to Muhammad, to whom God gave his revelations. It proclaims that Abraham was an early great Muslim, a Muslim before Muhammad, because he rejected naturalism and secularism and championed supernaturalist monotheism. Listen to the voice of the Romans which condemned the sinister traffic of the Christians, their worship of magic, miracles, mysticism and sorcery. Which condemned the Christian nocturnal assemblies beating the drums of criminality, conspiracy, secret plans and insurrection against the state. Which condemned the Christian exaltation of faith above reason and unconditional belief above sound assent. Which condemned the Christian exaltation of fancy and absurdity above common sense and scientific investigation. Which condemned the Christian cosmology of creation out of nothingness by the arbitrary will of God. Which condemned the Christian belief that existence is contingent and not absolute and requires an explanation in a supernatural superdimension. Which condemned Christian hallucinations of a deity who can make something appear out of nothing, and make two and two equal six, and make gold turn into ice, and make entities do what they cannot do. Which condemned the Christian fire bombing of the human mind and the Christian conflagration against the pagan houses of wisdom and understanding. Which condemned the Christian peasants, lowlifes, ruffians, demons and sons of the dirt in their war against progress and civilization. Which condemned a mass religion, mass delusions, mass superstitions and uncontrollable mass emotions and frenzy flowing through the gutters of Christian squalor and fouling Roman streets: "The Christians are accustomed to having private assemblies, which are forbidden by law. For of assemblies, some are public, which are conformable to the law of the land; but others are secret, and these are such as are hostile to the laws; among which are the Love Feasts of the Christians. Men who irrationally assent to everything resemble those who are delighted with jugglers and enchanters. For as most of these are depraved characters who deceive the vulgar and persuade them to do whatever they please, this also takes place with the Christians. Some of these are not willing either to give to receive a reason for what they believe; but are accustomed to say, 'Do not investigate but believe, for your faith will save you. For the wisdom of the world is bad, but folly is good.' The world, according to Moses, was created at a certain time, and from its commencement existed for a period far short of ten thousand years. The world, however, is without a beginning; in consequence of which there have been from all eternity many conflagrations, and many deluges, among the latter of which the most recent is that of Deucalion. Goatherds and shepherds among the Jews, following Moses as their leader, and being allured by rustic deceptions, conceived that there is only one god. These goatherds and shepherds were of the opinion that was only one god, whether they delight to call him the Most High, or Adonai, or Celestial, or Saboath, or to celebrate by any other name the fabricator of this world; for they know nothing further. For it is of no consequence whether the god who is denominated, after the accustomed manner of the Greeks, as Zeus, or is called by any other name, such as that which is given to him by the Indians or Egyptians. Let us grant that miracles were performed by you [Jesus]; but they are common with the works of enchanters, who promise to effect more wonderful deeds than these, and also with what those who have been taught by the Egyptians to perform in the middle of the forum for a few oboli; such as expelling demons from men, dissipating diseases by a puff; evoking the souls of heroes, and exhibiting sumptuous suppers, and tables covered with food, which have no reality. These magicians also represent animals as moving, which are not in reality animals, but merely appear to the imagination to be such." Three thousand years ago, a mental fire erupted in the Land of Abraham, the fire of Jewish mysticism and otherworldy religion. One thousand years later, this fire became the burning cross of Christianity and spread wildly, as physical fire spreads through dry brush, throughout the decadent, superstitious masses of the Roman Empire. A half a century later, the flaming sword of Islam completed the Abrahamic triad of revealed religions and would come to embrace an ummah, a community of the faithful, whose membership exceeds one billion. A cardinal tenet in the teachings of Abraham, Moses, Jesus and Muhammad is the resurrection of the dead. In the secular, modern age of the West, these religions from the East were resurrected. They reappeared under the guise of communism. Championing a mysticism of matter in place of a mysticism of mind, a mysticism of the proletariat in place of the mysticism of God, and a mysticism of Marx, Engels, Lenin and Stalin in place of a mysticism of Abraham, Moses, Jesus and Muhammad, these neoAbrahamic movements of the modern West are the mounted riders of a global apocalypse which has submerged the world in blood.